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Financial Highlights
S 55 4 2

KEY FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

FEHBRER
Year ended 31 March
BZ3A31ALLEE
Consolidated Income Statement maWEE 2016 2015 Change
2016 & 20154 BE %
Continuing operation BEKSEEK
Revenue (HK$'000) WA (FHIT) 190,698 73,368 117,330 159.9%
Gross profit (HK$'000) ER(FHIT) 107,616 57,669 49,947 86.6%
Profit before income tax (HK$'000) BRETESHANEF (F&zT) 106,104 57,654 48,450 84.0%
Profit for the year (HK$'000) REZ &M (FHT) 67,481 16,336 51,145 313.1%
Profit attributable to the equity holders — ZX A B A% 5 & (4 3% 7
of the Company (HK$'000) (F#7T) 51,192 10,979 40,213 366.3%
Basic earnings per share (HK cent) BRRERZAF (BWL) 3.33 0.84 2.49 296.4%
Diluted earnings per share (HK cent) ERREEERF OBL) 3.33 0.84 2.49 296.4%
As at 31 March
M3H31H
Consolidated Balance Sheet HEBEAER 2016 2015 Change
2016 F 2015 F BE %
Net assets (HK$'000) BEFAE(TET) 1,164,133 879,510 284,623 32.4%
Cash and bank balances (HK$'000) Be RRTES (T AT 463,081 364,265 98,816 27.1%
Borrowings (HK$'000) B8 (F#T) - 175600  (175,600)  -100.0%
Shareholders’ equity (HK$'000) Rz (FHT) 1,008,051 728,081 279,970 38.5%
KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
FERKLE
2016 2015 Change
2016 F 20154F 25
Gross profit margin® FEFEO 56.4% 50.4%  +6.0 percentage points
+6.0 A& 524
Return on equity@ AR ERE B3R 5.1% 15%  +3.6 percentage points
+3.6 A& 52
Current ratio (times)® MEILLE (5)0 2.1 1.2
Gearing ratio® BERBELEO - 0.20

(1) Gross profit margin represents gross profit divided by revenue of the (1)
Group.

(2)  Return on equity is defined as the ratio of profit attributable to equity (2
holders of the Company to total equity attributable to equity holders of the
company.

(3) . Current ratio is defined as the ratio of total current assets to total current  (3)
liabilities.

(4)  Gearing ratio represents total borrowings, including current and non- (4
current portion, divided by total equity.
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Chairman’s Statement
BN E: 4

On behalf of the board of directors, | am pleased to present the results
of Man Sang International Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2016 (“"FY16").

PERFORMANCE

The Group focuses on the development, sales and leasing of properties
in Mainland China. During FY16, property sales volume and property
price in small to medium cities in Mainland China remained subdued and
continued to be under downward adjustment pressure. Nevertheless,
the Group reported significant growth in revenue from the sale of
properties in the China Pearls and Jewellery City (“CP&J City”) which
was attributable to the completion of two residential apartments and
a commercial complex where the relevant contracted sales were
recognized during FY16. The Group’s revenue therefore increased by
HK$117.3 million or 159.8% from HK$73.4 million for the year ended 31
March 2015 (“FY15") to HK$190.7 million in FY16 and the gross profit
increased by HK$49.9 million or 86.5% from HK$57.7 million in FY15 to
HK$107.6 million in FY16.

The Group recorded profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
from continuing operation of HK$51.2 million and basic earnings per
share of 3.33 HK cents in FY16, as compared to a profit of HK$11.0
million and basic earnings per share of 0.84 HK cents in FY15, which
was principally due to (1) the sales of the newly completed residential
apartments and commercial units in CP&J City; and (2) a gain on disposal
of subsidiaries in March 2016 of HK$19.4 million.

In June 2015, the Company had allotted and issued a total of 256,038,041
shares of the Company to a subscriber under the general mandate of
the Company with net proceeds of approximately HK$279.0 million. The
allotment aimed to provide additional funds to strengthen the financial
position and broaden the shareholder and capital base of the Group so
as to facilitate future development as new business and development
opportunities arise.

In February 2016, the Group entered into an agreement to sell its
entire interest in a wholly-owned subsidiary which owns, manages and
operates 27 blocks of industrial properties in Shenzhen, the PRC (the
“Disposal”) with a consideration of HK$189.4 million. The Disposal has
been completed in March 2016. The Disposal enables the Group to
realise the current value of the Shenzhen Property in cash, enhance the
Company’s cashflow position and provide additional capital resources
for the Company to capture other investment opportunities as and when
they arise.
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FEARE

AEBEINEE HERHEFHADLY
¥ R2016FFHFEEN - FERMAF N
MEEREEHENAEBREEETARE
71 BEML - PRABERBERGER ([
REBRKEWN ) 2 MEHEERAEHE KNIEE
E FRAMEBEFTEABE R —ELAEEETFY
B¥T - WA R2016F B FE NHERRE
AHHE - AEEW AR AEZE2015F3 A
318 1EFZ([20154F §f B F [Z 1) 73,400,000
78 T+ & 2016 FF B B E 190,700,000 7 T
F+ & £ 117,300,000 78 7T % 159.8% + £ F| Bl i
2015 4 81 B £ JZ 57,700,000 7T F+ = 2016 4F
BT A JE 107,600,000 7T + FHIE 4 49,900,000
P TTE86.5% °

R2016FFHREFEERN  REESBARRR
B 5 48 48 & 375 04 751,200,000 T
BREARRFIIZEN - M2015FHBFE
Bl % 18 3% %1 11,000,000 7T & & A & A 2 7
0847l » FER AN (1) FERBEIFRIRE W&
ERHMEEABAEEBRMHE  ROR
201693 A HEK B A = Z U A 19,400,000 7
5T e

20155 6 A - ARBRBARE —RIZEE
B R 31T 6 256,038,041 IR AR R RIIR 5 T 3R
BB77 - P15 RIEF B4 /3 279,000,00058 7T °
ERECH § R EINE S AR AN B B 75
AR AN A B R Ko A AL - 1T NI AR 2R
EERMIES M ARRRES -

R20165F2 A - REBERI L hENAhE—B2
BB R 2EER - ZHBARRH BRI
THA EEREEVBEBIXYME(LHES
IH ) R{E &189,400,000/8 L~ HEEREE
R2016F3 AEMK - HEFREASERIE R
Yz EMREEE  MREARRZBEDR
EMN - RARFRREBINE SR - RHIR
HiREWEBRITEARRS

REBEBERAT/ =2 AFF4H 07



Chairman’s Statement
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PROSPECTS

The Group will continue to focus on the development, sales and leasing
of properties in Mainland China, Hong Kong and overseas. The Group is
proactively considering to expand its footprints in different regions within
the PRC, especially in the provincial capital cities where the demand for
residential/commercial properties are enormous, using the development
concept and experience of the CP&J City.

As announced on 12 April 2016, the Company has signed a sale
and purchase agreement to purchase a property located in the
central business district of Chongging, the PRC at a consideration
of HK$1,468 million. This property is currently under redevelopment
(renovation without demolishing/altering the building structure).
Upon the completion of the redevelopment, the property will become
a commercial/residential complex which will be held for sale and/
or leasing purposes. Given (i) the prestigious location the property
is erected within the central business district of Chongging; (ii) the
promising commercial and residential property market in Chongging,
the PRC; (iii) the increasing consumption power in Chongging; and
(iv) the implementation of “The Belt and Road Initiative” which brings
development opportunities to Chongqging, the proposed acquisition,
which is considered to be in line with the Company’s development
strategies, represents a good investment opportunity for the Group to
diversify its existing portfolio and it is expected that the acquisition will
create greater return to the shareholders of the Company in the longer
run. The transaction has yet to be completed as of date.

The Group will also closely monitor other market opportunities to
supplement its existing projects through mergers and acquisitions, so as
to create greater returns for the shareholders.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt gratitude to
all our shareholders, customers and other business partners for their
long-term attention and support to the Group over the years. | would
also like to thank the senior management team and all staff of the Group
for their dedication and hard work to the Group during the past year.

Lei Hong Wai

Chairman
Hong Kong, 26 May 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Man Sang International Limited
(the “Company”) is pleased to report the results of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2016 (“FY16"). During FY16, the consolidated profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company was HK$51.2 million (year ended 31 March
2015 (“FY15"): HK$11.0 million), representing an increase of 365.5% as
compared with that in FY15. Basic earnings per share was 3.33 HK cents
(FY15: 0.84 HK cents), representing an increase of 296.4% as compared
with that in FY15.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group focuses on the development, sales and leasing of properties
in Mainland China. During FY16, property sales volume and property
price in small to medium cities in Mainland China remained subdued and
continued to be under downward adjustment pressure. Nevertheless,
the Group reported significant growth in revenue from the sale of
properties in the China Pearls and Jewellery City (“CP&J City”) which
was attributable to the completion of two residential apartments and
a commercial complex where the relevant contracted sales were
recognized during FY16.

The Group is planning to develop a hotel which represents the last
building construction of phase 1 of the CP&J City, however, the timing
of which has yet to be determined. Besides, the Group is also planning
to roll out phase 2 of the development of CP&J City. The Group is
in the process of negotiating with the local government about the
development plan and the proposed acquisition is subject to auction/
tender processes. It is preliminarily proposed that phase 2 of CP&J City
will comprise residential apartments, commercial buildings and a market
centre, however the development plan may be amended subject to the
finalization of the negotiation which shall be agreed upon by both the
Group and the local government.

In June 2015, the Company had allotted and issued a total of 256,038,041
shares of the Company to a subscriber under the general mandate of
the Company with net proceeds of approximately HK$279.0 million. The
allotment aimed to provide additional funds to strengthen the financial
position and broaden the shareholder and capital base of the Group so
as to facilitate future development as new business and development
opportunities arise.
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Following the completion of the allotment as mentioned above, in
July 2015, the Group intended to acquire a group of companies which
indirectly controlled a commercial property located in Guangzhou,
the People’s Republic of China. The transaction was subsequently
terminated as one of the condition precedents cannot be fulfilled.
Notwithstanding this, the transaction reflects the Group's strategy to
invest in property related projects, especially in the provincial capital
cities, as and when the opportunities arise, using the Group financial
resources and solid experience in property-related business.

In February 2016, the Group entered into an agreement to sell its
entire interest in a wholly-owned subsidiary which owns, manages and
operates 27 blocks of industrial properties in Shenzhen, the PRC (the
“Disposal”) with a consideration of HK$189.4 million. The Disposal has
been completed in March 2016. The Disposal enables the Group to
realise the current value of the Shenzhen Property in cash, enhance the
Company'’s cashflow position and provide additional capital resources
for the Company to capture other investment opportunities as and when
they arise.

As announced on 12 April 2016, the Company has signed a sale
and purchase agreement to purchase a property located in the
central business district of Chongging, the PRC at a consideration
of HK$1,468 million. This property is currently under redevelopment
(renovation without demolishing/altering the building structure).
Upon the completion of the redevelopment, the property will become
a commercial/residential complex which will be held for sale and/
or leasing purposes. Given (i) the prestigious location the property
is erected within the central business district of Chongging; (i) the
promising commercial and residential property market in Chongging,
the PRC; (iii) the increasing consumption power in Chongging; and
(iv) the implementation of “The Belt and Road Initiative” which brings
development opportunities to Chongging, the proposed acquisition,
which is considered to be in line with the Company’s development
strategies, represents a good investment opportunity for the Group to
diversify its existing portfolio and it is expected that the acquisition will
create greater return to the shareholders of the Company in the longer
run. The transaction has yet to be completed as of date.

The Group is proactively looking for and market opportunities in
Mainland China to supplement its existing projects through mergers
and acquisitions, so as to implement the Group's strategy to invest in
property-related projects. Besides, the Group will continue to manage
its liquidity vigilantly to maintain the cash flexibility in the prevailing
unpredictable financial atmosphere.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue and gross profit

Revenue of the Group was HK$190.7 million (FY15: HK$73.4 million)
during FY16, which comprised sales of properties of HK$138.3 million
(FY15: HK$20.0 million) and rental income of HK$52.4 million (FY15:
HK$53.4 million). CP&J City continues to contribute the most to the
performance of the Group which accounted for 92.1% (FY15: 75.8%) of
total revenue in this segment during FY16.

The revenue from sales of properties mainly represented sales of
residential apartments and commercial plaza in CP&J City which were
completed in FY16 and has increased by HK$118.3 million to HK$138.3
million (FY15: HK$20.0 million) during FY16. Rental income decreased
by HK$1.0 million or 1.9% to HK$52.4 million (FY15: HK$53.4 million) for
FY16 as a result of the net effect of (1) the increase in rental rates from
the existing tenants; and (2) disposal of a subsidiary which owns a rental
income generated property in FY2015.

Gross profit of the Group increased by HK$49.9 million or 86.5% to
HK$107.6 million (FY15: HK$57.7 million) during FY16 as a result of the
increase in sales of the residential apartments and commercial plaza as
mentioned above.

Selling and administrative expenses (the “S&A
expenses”)

S&A expenses mainly comprised selling expenses of HK$5.0 million (FY15:
HK$5.8 million) and administrative expenses of HK$28.7 million (FY15:
HK$36.8 million). S&A expenses decreased by HK$8.9 million or 20.9% to
HK$33.7 million (FY15: HK$42.6 million) in FY16, which was primarily due
to the one-off and non-recurring listing expenses related to the spin-off
and separate listing of Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited during FY15.

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company from continuing
operation increased by HK$42.1 million or 462.6% to HK$51.2 million
(FY15: HK$9.1 million from continuing operation) in FY16, which was
principally due to (1) the sales of the newly completed residential
apartments and commercial units in CP&J City; and (2) a gain on disposal
of subsidiaries in March 2016 of HK$19.4 million.
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Liquidity and capital resources

As at 31 March 2016, the Group’s total equity, including non-controlling
interests, was HK$1,164.1 million (2015: HK$879.5 million), representing
an increase of 32.4% from last year.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had cash and bank balances of
HK$463.1 million (2015: HK$364.3 million). Cash and bank balances
were mainly denominated in United States dollars, Hong Kong dollars
and Chinese Renminbi. The Group’s working capital or net current
assets were HK$533.7 million (2015: HK$138.0 million). The current ratio,
represented by the current assets divided by the current liabilities, was
2.1(2015:1.2).

As at 31 March 2016, the Group did not have any borrowings (2015:
HK$175.6 million). In 2015, gearing ratio, representing total borrowings
divided by total equity, was 0.20.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had available banking facilities of
HK$185.0 million with various banks, of which the unused banking
facilities amounted to HK$45.0 million.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group’s borrowings and banking facilities were
secured by certain investment properties and bank deposits with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$445.1 million.

Capital structure

During the year, the capital structure of the Company had the following
changes:

(@ A total of 256,038,041 new shares were allotted and issued to
Twin Success International Limited at the subscription price of
HK$1.09 per share. The net proceeds from the subscription are
approximately HK$279.0 million. The Company intends to use the
net proceeds from the subscription to enlarge its capital base
and prepare for any development opportunities as and when they
arise; and

(b)  In August 2016, the Company allotted and issued 1,000,000 new
shares at a subscription price of HK$0.61 per share pursuant to the
exercise of share options granted to a director of the Group under
the Company's share option scheme.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates

The Group principally engages its business operation in Hong Kong
and Mainland China. The Group has subsidiaries operating in Mainland
China, in which most of their transactions are denominated in Chinese
Renminbi. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange fluctuations from
Chinese Renminbi which is the main foreign currency transacted by the
Group during the year.

The Group has not entered into any foreign exchange contract as
hedging measures. The Group manages its foreign currency risk against
Chinese Renminbi by closely monitoring its movement and may use
hedging derivative, such as foreign currency forward contract, to
manage its foreign currency risk as appropriate.

Financial guarantees

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had contingent liabilities of HK$28.6
million (2015: HK$26.6 million) in respect of guaranteeing the mortgage
for certain purchasers of properties in CP&J City under mortgage
collaboration agreements with a bank in the PRC.

Human resources and remuneration policy

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had a total workforce of 76 (2015: 100),
of whom 6 (2015: 6) were based in Hong Kong. The total staff cost,
including directors’ emoluments, share options benefit and mandatory
provident fund, was approximately HK$18.9 million (2015: HK$48.2
million). Employees were remunerated on the basis of their performance
and experience. Remuneration packages, including salary and year-end
discretionary bonus, were determined by reference to market conditions
and individual performance.

Prospects

The Group is proactively considering to expand its footprints in different
regions within the Mainland China, especially in the provincial capital
cities where the demand for residential/commercial properties are
enormous, using the development concept and experience of the CP&J
City. The Group will closely monitor market opportunities to supplement
its existing projects through mergers and acquisitions, so as to create
greater returns for the shareholders.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

HEREARBRBTHAEBEE

CHAIRMAN

Mr. Lei Hong Wai, aged 48, was appointed as an executive director of
the Company and the Chairman of the Board on 26 June 2015 and 31
March 2016, respectively. Mr. Lei is responsible for the business strategy
and direction of the Company and provides leadership for the Board
and ensure proper and effective functioning of the Board. He has over
14 years of extensive experience in corporate management, investment
and business development. He was a director of The Chamber of Hong
Kong Listed Companies Limited, which promotes interaction amongst
its members which are listed companies in Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China, in 2002. Mr. Lei is also a director of Twin Success
International Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance. Mr.
Lei is currently the chairman and an executive director of Eternity
Investment Limited (“Eternity”) (a company listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 764)). Mr. Lei
was the chairman of the board of directors and an executive director of
Huanxi Media Group Limited (@ company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1003) and formerly known as 21 Holdings Limited) during
the period from 10 April 2014 to 2 September 2015.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Cheng Ka Man, Carman, aged 27, has been an Executive Director
of the Company since September 2013. She is responsible for the overall
management of the Group. She obtained a Master of Philosophy degree
in Real Estate Finance from University of Cambridge in 2012, a Master
of Science degree in Management from Imperial College London in 2011
and a Bachelor of Science degree in Financial and Business Economics
from University of London in 2010. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Cheng
had worked in a leading Asian investment firm. She is a daughter of Mr.
Cheng Chung Hing, a substantial shareholder of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton, aged 50, was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 26 June 2015. Mr. Cheung is
responsible for the overall implementation of the Company’s strategies
and the co-ordination of overall business operations. He has over 26
years of experience in the area of corporate finance and securities
industries. He holds a Master Degree in Accounting and Finance from
the University of Lancaster in the United Kingdom. Mr. Cheung is also a
director of Twin Success International Limited, a substantial shareholder
of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance. Mr. Cheung is currently an executive director of
Eternity.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

HELRBREMAREE

Mr. Leung Alex, aged 37, has been an Executive Director of the
Company since October 2014. He joined the Group in February 2012 as
the Chief Financial Officer and was appointed as the Company Secretary
of the Group in March 2012. He obtained his Bachelor of Commerce
degree from the University of Auckland, New Zealand in May 2000.
Before joining the Group, Mr. Leung had worked in two international
accounting firms from December 2000 to February 2012. He is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
member of the CPA Australia. He has more than 16 years of experience
in auditing, accounting and corporate management. Mr. Leung is
responsible for corporate finance, mergers and acquisition matters,
financial and accounting management, corporate governance, as well as
compliance affairs of the Group. He was responsible for the formulation,
planning and execution of the Group’s restructuring and the spin-off and
separate listing of Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited. Mr. Leung has
been appointed as an executive director of Man Sang Jewellery Holdings
Limited (@ company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1466) on
11 April 2016.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Cheong Tat, aged 66, has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company since January 2015. He holds a
master degree in financial management from Central Queensland
University. He is an associate of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators (U.K.) and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries. He is also a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and CPA Australia. Mr. Chan has over 32 years of work
experience in the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department. He was an
Assistant Commissioner in charge of the field audit and investigation
unit before he retired in 2005. He is currently the sole director of C
T Tax Consultants Limited, a tax consultancy company. He is also an
independent non-executive director of the following companies which
are listed on the Stock Exchange: Guangdong Tannery Limited (stock
code: 1058) and Medicskin Holdings Limited (stock code: 8307). He
ceased to be an independent non-executive director of Wasion Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 3393) on 15 May 2015.

Mr. Kiu Wai Ming, aged 67, has been an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since September 2004. He has been in the
banking and finance field for over 30 years. He is currently a full time
consultant of Walker Group Holdings Limited (“Walker Group”) (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1386) and ceased to
be an executive director and the chief executive officer of Walker Group
on 26 April 2016. He is also an independent non-executive director of
CCB International (Holdings) Ltd and is an independent non-executive
director of Hung Fook Tong Group Holdings Limited (@ company listed
on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1446)). Mr. Kiu holds a bachelor’s
degree in economics and marketing from Louisiana State University, the
United States of America.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

FEHLERBEHAEEE

Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex, aged 52, has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company since September 2004. Mr. Lau is
a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales. He holds a bachelor’s degree in accounting from University of
East Anglia, United Kingdom. Mr. Lau manages initial public offerings
and fund-raising exercises and advises listed companies on mergers and
acquisitions, takeovers, buyouts and other corporate transactions. He
has over 25 years of experience in corporate finance and accounting.
He is an independent non-executive director of China Conch Venture
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
586)) and One Media Group Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 426)).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Leung Alex, aged 37, is the Chief Financial Officer and the
Company Secretary of the Group. He is also an Executive Director of the
Company. Please refer to the sub-section headed “Executive Directors”
above for Mr. Leung’s biographical details.

16 Man Sang International Limited / Annual Report 2016

BIRFERE - IBES2E 200459 A HE
FEARRRNBILIEATES - BILERER K
BRI SMAEes  URHERERR
HRnABeHB L8N BALEBEERA
PR M EEES  WH EmARREWRES
Bt 0 BEEREMOERSGZER - 85k
AHECERERSH LFEAEB -+ RAFLR -
Rt rARESRAZEERER AR (—HE
B AT ETE AR (BRDAR5R : 586)) kEZEE
HEEBERAR(—MERH EMOARQR]
(BRADRSE © 426)) 2B IEMITES o

SREEAE

REBERE BEIm RAKEZEFEM
BRENRAME - REERKRARFZH
TEE - ARARTECZEEFE  F2HLEX
[RITEE] DFf -



Corporate Governance Report
e X 21:E it

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

Man Sang International Limited (the “"Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) recognises the importance of achieving the
highest standard of corporate governance consistent with the needs
and requirements of its businesses and the best interest of all of its
stakeholders, and the board of directors (the ‘Board”) is fully committed
to doing so. The Board believes that high standards of corporate
governance provide a framework and solid foundation for the Group to
manage business risks, enhance transparency, achieve high standard of
accountability and protect stakeholders’ interests.

The Group has adopted a corporate governance statement of policy
which provides guidance on the application of the corporate governance
principles on the Group, with reference to the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

According to the code provision A.4.1 as set out in the CG Code, non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election. Although two Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Kiu Wai Ming and Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex have not been appointed for
a specific term, they will all retire at the annual general meeting at least
once every three years and will be eligible for re-election in accordance
with the CG Code. In the opinion of the Directors, the retirement of each
Non-Executive Director at the annual general meeting at least once
every three years shall have the same effect of appointing them with a
specific term of three years.

Save as disclosed above, in the opinion of the directors of the Company
(the "Director(s)”), the Company has complied with all code provisions as
set out in the CG Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2016 and,
where appropriate, the applicable recommended best practices of the
CG Code.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for dealing in securities
of the Company by the Directors. All Directors have confirmed, upon
specific enquiries made by the Company, that they have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code during the year ended
31 March 2016. To ensure Directors’ dealings in the securities of the
Company (the “Securities”) are conducted in accordance with the Model
Code and securities code of the Company, a Director is required to
notify the Chairman in writing and obtain a written acknowledgement
from the Chairman prior to any dealings in the Securities.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the Group,
which includes leadership and control of the Company and oversees
the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions, internal control, risk
management and performances. The management team is delegated
with the authority and responsibility by the Board for the day-to-
day management of the Group. The delegated functions and work
tasks are periodically reviewed. Major corporate matters that are
specifically delegated by the Board to the management include (1) the
preparation of interim and annual reports and announcements for the
Board's approval before publishing; (2) implementation of adequate
systems of internal controls and risk management procedures; and (3)
compliance with relevant statutory and regulatory requirements and
rules and regulations. It is the responsibility of the Board to determine
the appropriate corporate governance practices applicable to the
Company’s circumstances and to ensure processes and procedures are
in place to achieve the Company's corporate governance objectives.

The Board has maintained the necessary balance of skills and
experience appropriate for the business requirements and objectives
of the Group and for the exercise of independent judgement. Each
Director with various professional qualification, experience and related
financial management expertise have contributed to the effective
direction of the Company and provided adequate checks and balances
to safeguard to the interests of both the Group and the shareholders.
Hence, the Board believes that the current Board composition satisfy the
balance of expertise, skills and experience to the corporate governance
requirements of the Group as well as the ongoing development and
management of its business activities.

The Board currently comprises four Executive Directors, namely Mr. Lei
Hong Wai (Chairman), Ms. Cheng Ka Man, Carman, Mr. Cheung Kwok
Wai, Elton and Mr. Leung Alex and three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chan Cheong Tat, Mr. Kiu Wai Ming and Mr. Lau
Chi Wah, Alex.
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Due to retirement, Mr. Cheng Tai Po resigned as a Non-Executive
Director and the Chairman of the Company as well as a member of
the Company’s Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
on 31 March 2016. Due to the completion of disposal of Man Sang
Jewellery Company Limited, Mr. Cheng Sai, who has been responsible
for managing one of the subsidiaries of Man Sang Jewellery Company
Limited, resigned as an Executive Director on 31 March 2016.

The biographies of the existing Directors are set out in “Profile of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 14 to 16 of this annual
report.

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operation and financial performance of the Company, and to review and
approve the Company's interim and annual results. During the year, four
Board meetings were held and the attendance of each Director at the
Board meetings is set out in the section headed “Board and Committees
Meetings” of this Report.

Regular Board meetings for each year are scheduled in advance to
facilitate maximum attendance of Directors. All Directors are given
an opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda. The
Company Secretary assists the Chairman in preparing the agenda for
meetings to comply with all applicable rules and regulations. The agenda
and the accompanying Board papers are normally sent to Directors
at least three days before the intended date of a Board meeting. Draft
minutes of each Board meeting are circulated to Directors for their
comment before being tabled at the next Board meeting for approval. All
minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection
at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company, all Directors appointed to fill
a causal vacancy shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at
the meeting. At each annual general meeting, at least one third of the
Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

Save and except for each of Mr. Lei Hong Wai and Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai
Elton beneficially owns 50% and 25% respectively in the issued share
capital of Twin Success International Limited, a substantial shareholder
of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, there is no relationship between members of the
Board.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and the CEO of the Group are clearly defined
and segregated to ensure independence and proper checks and
balances. The Chairman focuses on the business strategy and direction
of the Company and has executive responsibilities, provides leadership
for the Board and ensures proper and effective functioning of the Board
in discharging of its responsibilities. The CEQ is accountable to the Board
for the overall implementation of the Company’s strategies and the co-
ordination of overall business operations.

There is currently no officer carrying the title of CEO up to the date of
this annual report. In the absence of the CEO, the duties of the CEO have
been/will continue to be undertaken by other executive members of the
Board, namely Ms. Cheng Ka Man, Carman, Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton
and Mr. Leung Alex, therefore, in the opinion of the Directors, the roles
of the Chairman and the CEO have been/will continue to be properly
segregated in the absence of an officer carrying the title of CEO.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

According to the code provision A.4.1 as set out in the CG Code, non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election. Although two Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Kiu Wai Ming and Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex have not been appointed for
a specific term, they will all retire at the annual general meeting at least
once every three years and will be eligible for re- election in accordance
with the CG Code. In the opinion of the Directors, the retirement of each
Non-Executive Director at the annual general meeting at least once
every three years shall have the same effect of appointing them with a
specific term of three years.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has complied with the requirements under Rules 3.10(1),
3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The Company has received
confirmation of independence from all three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chan Cheong Tat, Mr. Kiu Wai Ming and Mr. Lau
Chi Wah, Alex in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex and Mr. Kiu Wai Ming have served the Board of
the Company for more than nine years. They have clearly demonstrated
their willingness to exercise independent judgement and to provide
objective challenges to the management. There is no evidence that
length of tenure is having an adverse impact on their independence. The
Board therefore considers that Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex and Mr. Kiu Wai
Ming remain independent, notwithstanding the length of their tenure.
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The Board has reviewed the independence of all Independent Non-
Executive Directors and concluded that all of them are independent
within the definition of the Listing Rules. Furthermore, the Board is
not aware of the occurrence of any events which would cause it to
believe that the independence of any of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors has been impaired up to the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Upon appointing a new Director, each new Director receives an
induction package covering business operations, policy and procedures
of the Company as well as the general, statutory and regulatory
obligations of being a Director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware
of his/her responsibilities under the Listing Rules and other relevant
regulatory requirements.

The Directors, on an ongoing basis, will receive amendments to
or updates on the relevant laws, rules and regulations. In addition,
the Company encourages the Directors to enrol in a wide range of
professional development courses and seminars relating to the Listing
Rules, Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and corporate governance
practices so that they can continuously improve their relevant
knowledge and skills. The Company has also provided reading materials
to all Directors to develop and refresh their professional knowledge.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) on 22
August 2013 which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board.

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diversed Board and sees increasing diversity at Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of the Company’s
strategic objectives and sustainable development.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to talents,
skills, experience, independence and knowledge. The Company will
also take into consideration its own business model and specific needs
from time to time. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy
and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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As at the date of this Report, the Board comprises seven Directors,
amongst them, three are Independent Non-Executive Directors, thereby
promoting critical review and control of the management process. The
Board is also characterized by significant diversity, whether considered
in terms of gender, age, professional experience, skills and knowledge.

Having reviewed the Policy and the Board’s composition, the Nomination
Committee considered that the requirements of the Policy had been
met.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

An Audit Committee has been established by the Board with specific
written terms of reference and all members of the Audit Committee
are Independent Non-Executive Directors. Pursuant to the Audit
Committee’s terms of reference, the Audit Committee is authorised to
commit Company funds in order to obtain advice from outside legal
counsel, accountants, investigatory services or other expert advice.
Details of the authority and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chan Cheong Tat, Mr. Kiu Wai Ming and Mr.
Lau Chi Wah, Alex. Mr. Chan Cheong Tat is the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Audit Committee held two
meetings to, including to review the annual results for the year ended
31 March 2015 and the interim results for the six months ended 30
September 2015 before their submission to the Board and monitored
the integrity of such financial statements. In addition, the Audit
Committee also had a private meeting with the independent auditor
without the presence of management to discuss any area of concern.
The attendance of each member of the Audit Committee is set out in the
section headed "Board and Committees Meetings” of this Report.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A Remuneration Committee has been established by the Board with
specific written terms of reference and the majority of the members of
the Remuneration Committee are Independent Non-Executive Directors.
Details of the authority and responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three Independent Non-
Executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Cheong Tat, Mr. Kiu Wai Ming and
Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex, and two Executive Directors, namely Mr. Lei Hong
Wai and Ms. Cheng Ka Man, Carman. Mr. Kiu Wai Ming is the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Remuneration Committee
held one meeting to approve the remuneration packages and
performance bonuses for the Directors and senior management of
the Company. The attendance of each member of the Remuneration
Committee is set out in the section headed “Board and Committees
Meetings” of this Report.

Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31
March 2016 are set out in Note 38 to the financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

A Nomination Committee has been established by the Board with
specific terms of reference. The Nomination Committee is responsible
for, amongst other things, identifying individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members, considering the reappointment of the Directors
and succession planning for Directors and making recommendations to
the Board in respect of the aforesaid matters. Details of the authority
and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee comprises three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chan Cheong Tat, Mr. Kiu Wai Ming and Mr. Lau
Chi Wah, Alex, and two Executive Directors, namely Mr. Lei Hong Wai
and Ms. Cheng Ka Man, Carman. Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex is the chairman
of the Nomination Committee.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Nomination Committee
has reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board and
concluded that members of the Board has possessed the expertise and
independence to carry out the Board’s functions and responsibilities.
The attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee is set out
in the section headed “Board and Committees Meetings” of this Report.
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BOARD AND COMMITTEES MEETINGS EEgRZEESER
The individual attendance records of each Director at the various #HZE2016 3 A 31 BIFEE KEEFHER
meetings of the Company during the year ended 31 March 2016 are set ARl Z{E@:3% 2 @R HFE2 ks T -
out below:

Annual Special

general general Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination

meeting meeting Board  Committee = Committee =~ Committee
Name of Director EEng BRRAFKE RRBAIKE Exg ENERES FMzES REZES
Mr. Lei Hong Wai FTHERED 1" 01 2/3 - - -
Ms. Cheng Ka Man, Carman &z )ME " n 4/4 - n 1"
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton @ REIREEAED 11 1" 3/3 - - -
Mr. Leung Alex PEEGAE 1 1/ 4/4 - - -
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat BREELE 11 il 4/4 22 1M 1
Mr. Kiu Wai Ming BHELE 11 "N 4/4 212 1 11
Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex BEERE 11 1/1 474 22 1/1 11
Mr. Cheng Tai Po BRE7xHE 11 1/1 4/4 - 1/1 11
Mr. Cheng Sai e 01 01 3/4 - - -

m Mr. Lei Hong Wai was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company
on 26 June 2015 and the members of Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee on 31 March 2016.

@ Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 26 June 2015.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 which gives a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2016, and
of the results and cash flows for year then ended. In preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016, the Board has
selected appropriate accounting policies, applied them consistently in
accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards which
are pertinent to its operations and relevant to the financial statements,
made judgements and estimates that are prudent and reasonable,
and ensured the preparation of the financial statements on the going
concern basis.

The Group endeavours to present a balanced, clear and comprehensible
assessment of the Group's performance, position and prospects. The
interim and annual results of the Company are announced in a timely
manner within the limit of two months and three months, respectively,
after the end of the relevant periods in accordance with the Listing
Rules.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibility for preparing all
information and representation contained in the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended 31 March 2016.
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AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the remuneration paid/payable to
PricewaterhouseCoopers is set out as follows:

BB ET I &

REBEEER - B ENERERKE R
FHH 2 M HIIMT :

Services rendered Fri2 IR FE Fee paid/payable
B ENEA

HK$'000

FHT

Audit of financial statements EREERE 1,270
Agreed-upon procedures on interim results FHARER TR 270
Other non-audit services B IEE RS 579
2,119

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility for the
design and implementation of internal controls and risk management
which covers financial reporting, operations, compliance and risk
management of the Company, as well as continuous monitoring the
effectiveness of such internal controls and risk management. The Board
has delegated such responsibility to the management of the Company.
The management, under the supervision of the Board, has established
an on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing significant
risks faced by the Group.

The Audit Committee reviews the internal controls and risk management
that are significant to the Group on an on-going basis. The Audit
Committee also considers the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting
function, as well as their training programmes and budgets.

The Board is satisfied that the internal control system in place covering
all material controls including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions for the year under review and
up to the date of issuance of the annual report is reasonably effective
and adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Leung Alex has been the Company Secretary of the Company
since March 2012. He is a full time employee of the Company and
has adequate working knowledge on the Company to discharge his
duty as the Company Secretary. Mr. Leung reports to the Chairman of
the Company and is responsible for advising the Board on corporate
governance matters. For the year under review, Mr. Leung has confirmed
that he has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

P HB B 42 K% L B B IR

EEemAEUR RRTAMEERERE
Ber2HEL BRAQAPBHE  25E& -
EREAREETH YHEERZSNME
ZRREBREERZKRN - EFEGERAQFEE
BZRkZEHE AEFSEET BEED
WBZBEERR - AR - S R EEAREAN
m¥ 2 EBRER

ERZESRHEREEERNYUAEEMS
BEAZAMEELERER - BZEZEEN
EEAGSEEGH MUMBERBE T EZE
R BTEENMEREEEH  ARBTAE
RZBIIREREHRERERE

EXeEM RMOBEFEARBERNFRTIE
BE - MAENMEIERGOREMAEREE
BREME  RERAMREEIANEREER
B WEAEMAE R REH -

DNEME

REBEEB0NFIAREERRRZA
AME - RAARRZRIES - AARHMT
TEER - BEETTRARMWENRE - RELEAR
ARBEFEER WEERCEXERETEAE
EZeRHER - REEFER - RELRERR
BRI T ORISR Z HEEEET

REBEBERAT/ =2 AFF4H 25



Corporate Governance Report

SEE R

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to convene a Special
General Meeting (“SGM")

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws and the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (the “Companies Act”), registered Shareholders holding not
less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company (the “SGM
Requisitionists”) can deposit a written request to convene a SGM at
the registered office of the Company (the “Registered Office”), which is
presently situated at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda. The SGM Requisitionists must state in their request(s) the
objects of the SGM and such request(s) must be signed by all the SGM
Requisitionists and may consist of several documents in like form, each
signed by one or more of the SGM Requisitionists.

The Share Registrars will verify the SGM Requisitionists’ particulars in
the SGM Requisitionists’ request. Promptly after confirmation from the
Share Registrars that the SGM Requisitionists’ request is in order, the
Company Secretary will arrange with the Board to convene a SGM by
serving sufficient notice to all the registered Shareholders in accordance
with all the relevant statutory and regulatory requirements. On the
contrary, if the SGM Requisitionists” request is verified not in order, the
SGM Requisitionists will be advised of the outcome and a SGM will not
be convened as requested.

The SGM Requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one-half
of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a SGM
if within twenty-one (21) days of the deposit of the SGM Requisitionists'’
request, the Board does not proceed duly to convene a SGM provided
that any SGM so convened is held within three (3) months from the date
of the original SGM Requisitionists’ request. A SGM so convened by the
SGM Requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward
Proposals at a general Meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Act, either any number of the registered
Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company (the “Requisitionists”), or not less than 100 of such
registered Shareholders, can request the Company in writing to (a) give
to Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next general meeting
notice of any resolution which may properly be moved and is intended
to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate to Shareholders entitled
to receive notice of the next general meeting any statement of not more
than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.
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The requisition signed by all the Requisitionists may consist of
several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of the
Requisitionists; and it must be deposited at the Registered Office with a
sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant expenses, not
less than six weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition requiring
notice of a resolution or not less than one week before the meeting
in the case of any other requisition. Provided that if an AGM is called
for a date six weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited,
the requisition though not deposited within the time required shall be
deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

Shareholders’ enquires and Proposals

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings
to the Company's share registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited, at Level
22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, or call its
customer service hotline at (852) 2980 1333.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The annual general meeting provides an opportunity for shareholders
to exchange views with the Board. The chairman of the Board, the
chairman of Audit Committee and the chairman of Remuneration
Committee had attended the 2015 AGM of the Company held on 28 July
2015 to answer shareholders’ questions.

The public are welcomed to give their comments and make enquiries
through the Company’s website and by means of emails to the investor
relations department (email address: ir-hk@man-sang.com). The
management always provides prompt responses to any such enquiries.
During the year ended 31 March 2016, there are no changes to the
Company’s bye-laws. The Company’s bye-laws is available on the
website of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES

The Company is committed to the sustainable development of the
environment and our society. The Group has endeavoured to comply
with laws and regulations regarding environmental protection and
adopted effective environmental policies to ensure its projects meet the
required standards and ethics in respect of environmental protection.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Company recognizes that our employees, customers and suppliers
and business associates are key stakeholders to the Company’s
success. We strive to achieve corporate sustainability through
engaging our employees, providing quality products and services to our
customers, collaborating with business partners (including suppliers and
contractors) to deliver quality sustainable products and services and
supporting our community.

By Order of the Board
Lei Hong Wai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 May 2016
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Report of the Directors
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The directors (the “Director(s)”) of Man Sang International Limited (the
“Company”) herein present their report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
"Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The Company is an investment holding company. During the year, the
Group is principally engaged in property development and investment
which covers development, sales and leasing of properties.

The principal activities of the Company’s major subsidiaries are set out
in Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by operating
segment is set out in note 6 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a discussion
on the Group’s future business development are provided in the
Chairman’s Statement on pages 7 and 8 and Management Discussion
and Analysis on pages 9 to 13 of this Annual Report.

The capital risk management and financial risk management objectives
and policies of the Group are shown in note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 43 to 146 of this Annual Report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is provided in the Financial Highlights on
page 6 of this Annual Report.

Discussion on the Group's environmental issues and compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Company are contained in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
17 to 28 of this Annual Report.

The Company’s key relationships with its employees, customers and
suppliers and business associates that have a significant impact on the
Company and on which the Company’s success depends are shown
in the Management Discussion and Analysis under “Employee and
Remuneration Policy” section on pages 9 to 13 and in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 17 to 28 of this Annual Report.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016 are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 43 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2016.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 13 July 2016 to Friday, 15 July 2016 (both days inclusive),
for the purpose of determining Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and
vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be
held on Friday, 15 July 2016 (the “2016 AGM"), during which period no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for attending and
voting at the 2016 AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited, at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than
4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 12 July 2016.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s net reserves available for distribution, calculated in
accordance with the provisions of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, as
at 31 March 2016 amounted to HK$245,242,000 (2015: HK$352,506,000),
which represented the retained earnings.

SHARE ISSUED IN THE YEAR

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in
Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year, the share capital of the Company had the following
changes:

(@ A total of 256,038,041 new shares were allotted and issued to
Twin Success International Limited at the subscription price of
HK$1.09 per share. The net proceeds from the subscription are
approximately HK$279.0 million. The Company intends to use the
net proceeds from the subscription to enlarge its capital base
and prepare for any development opportunities as and when they
arise; and

(b)  In August 2016, the Company allotted and issued 1,000,000 new
shares at a subscription price of HK$0.61 per share pursuant to the
exercise of share options granted to a director of the Group under
the Company's share option scheme.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Options Scheme” of
this report and “Share-based payment” in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements, no equity-linked agreement was entered into by
the Company during the year.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of movements in investment properties, investment properties
under construction, properties under development and completed
properties held for sale of the Group during the year are set out in Notes
14, 15, 16 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

BORROWINGS AND INTEREST CAPITALISED

Borrowings repayable on demand or within one year are classified under
current liabilities. Details of the borrowings are set out in Note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements. Interest and other borrowing costs
capitalised by the Group during the year are set out in Note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A five-year financial summary of the Group is set out on page 147.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lei Hong Wai (Chairman)
(appointed as an executive director on 26 June 2015
and Chairman on 31 March 2016)

Ms. Cheng Ka Man, Carman

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton
(appointed on 26 June 2015)

Mr. Leung Alex

Mr. Cheng Sai (resigned on 31 March 2016)

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Cheng Tai Po
(resigned as the Non-Executive Chairman on 31 March 2016)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat

Mr. Kiu Wai Ming
Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex
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In accordance with article 87 of the Company’s bye-laws, at each annual
general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire
from office by rotation. Accordingly, Mr. Lei Hong Wai, Mr. Cheung Kwok
Wai, Elton, Mr. Kiu Wai Ming and Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. As announced by
the Company on 1 June 2016, Mr. Kiu Wai Ming and Mr. Lau Chi Wah,
Alex have informed the Company that they will not offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming general meeting of the Company.
Mr. Lei Hong Wai and Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton, being eligible, have
offered themselves for re-election at the forthcoming general meeting
of the Company. Mr. Cheng Tai Po and Mr. Cheng Sai resigned as non-
executive chairman and executive director of the Company on 31 March
2016 respectively. Mr. Cheng Tai Po and Mr. Cheng Sai both confirmed
that they have no disagreement with the Board and nothing relating to
the affairs of the Company needed to be brought to the attention of the
shareholders of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENT

Ms. Cheng Ka Man, Carman has entered into a service agreement
with the Company on 30 August 2013 for a fixed term of three years
commencing on 2 September 2013. Mr. Leung Alex has entered into a
service agreement with the Company on 16 October 2014 for a fixed
term of three years commencing on the same date. Such agreements
are determinable by either party serving not less than three months’
notice in writing to the other.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors being proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has entered into
any service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which
is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and senior management are set out
on pages 14 to 16.

DIRECTOR’S MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN
RELATION TO THE COMPANY’S BUSINESS

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation
to the Group's business to which the Company’s subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or its parent company was a party and in which a director of
the Company and the director’s connected party had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company has been
entered into or existed during the year.

COMPETING BUSINESSES

As at 31 March 2016, none of the Directors had any interest in a
business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the Group's businesses.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme which was adopted
on 2 August 2002 (the “Share Option Scheme”) are set out in note 28 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Details of the movement of the share options granted under the Share
Option Scheme during the year are set out below:
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U These share options represent personal interest held as beneficial owner.

2. The Company recorded the fair value of these share options as staff
cost in the consolidated income statement. The Company will record the
nominal value of the shares which is HK$0.10 per share issued pursuant to
the exercise price of the share options as additional share capital and the
Company will record the excess of the exercise price of the share options
over nominal value of the shares in its share premium account. Any share
options which have lapsed or been cancelled will be deducted from the
balance of the share options.

3. 1,000,000 share options will be vested on the first anniversary of the date
of grant, another 1,000,000 share options will be vested on the second
anniversary of the date of grant and the remaining 1,000,000 share options
will be vested on the third anniversary of the date of grant.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2016, the interests and short positions of the Directors
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")), which (a) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which the Directors have taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFQ); or (b) were required, pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or (c) were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange were set out below:

(@) long positions in ordinary shares of the
company

ESHRCESER

R2016F3HA31H » EFERA QRIS EAEM
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Percentage of
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Capacity/nature Direct Deemed Total share capital

Name of Director of interest interest interest interest of the Company

R NG

R ERITRE

EEpE 51/ EamtE HiEfER HEES R Batk

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton  Interest in controlled - 256,038,041 256,038,041 16.12%
RBIE S & corporations (Note)
X EE R (Pig3E)

Mr. Lei Hong Wai Interest in controlled - 256,038,041 256,038,041 16.12%
THELE corporations (Note)
X EE R (BgzE)

Mr. Leung Alex Beneficial owner 1,800,000 - 1,800,000 0.11%

RIS

Note: These Shares were directly owned by Twin Success International
Limited (“Twin Success”), which is (i) 50% owned by Silver Pacific
Development Limited (“SP Development”), which in turn is owned
by Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton and Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan in equal
shares, and (i) 50% owned by Silver Pacific International Limited (“SP
International”), which is wholly-owned by Mr. Lei Hong Wai.

EsBEAA
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(b) long positions in underlying shares of the
company

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, none of the Directors
had, as at 31 March 2016, any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which (a) were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to provisions of Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which the Directors have taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or
(c) were required, pursuant to the Model Code to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective spouse or minor children, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN

SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2016, substantial shareholders’ interests and short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company,
other than the Directors, as recorded in the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the

SFO were as follows:

FTERRZESER

R2016F3A31H  REARRZREEFK
HEHROIFERBEFEZ T BZRRELMA
o ETERR(EFHRINEARTRD REEE
BIDPRE 2 EmMRRIT

Number of ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each held

FEESREECI0EBI ST EREE
Percentage of
the issued
Capacity/nature Direct Deemed Total share capital
Name of Shareholder of interest interest interest interest of the Company
EERATE
H1E ERTRE
BRES B8 51/ RRitE HiEER REES s Bok
Mr. Cheng Chung Hing Beneficial owner and interest 11,773,453 368,781,655 380,555,108 23.95%
LI/NESS in a controlled corporation (Note 1)
ERlEBARZIEAE S (Hzx1)
Rich Men Limited Beneficial owner 368,781,655 - 368,781,655 23.21%
ExnEAA (Note 1)
(MH3E1)
Twin Success Beneficial owner 256,038,041 - 256,038,041 16.12%
EnEBA (Note 2)
(MH3E2)
SP Development Interest in a controlled - 256,038,041 256,038,041 16.12%
corporation (Note 2)
XA EREE (Bzx2)
SP International Interest in a controlled - 256,038,041 256,038,041 16.12%
corporation (Note 2)
XEAERER (Mi3E2)
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton Interest in controlled - 256,038,041 256,038,041 16.12%
REI{E L corporations (Note 2)
XEEEER (BF#E2)
Mr. Lei Hong Wai Interest in controlled - 256,038,041 256,038,041 16.12%
SRR E corporations (Note 2)
XL E R (Hzx2)
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan Interest in a controlled - 256,038,041 256,038,041 16.12%
REIE) ST A corporation (Note 2)
X EE R (Hzx2)
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Notes:

1. These Shares were directly owned by Rich Men Limited. Mr. Cheng Chung
Hing owns 100% of the issued share capital of Rich Men Limited.

2. These Shares were directly owned by Twin Success, which is (i) 50% owned
by SP Development, which in turn is owned by Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai,
Elton and Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan in equal shares, and (i) 50% owned by SP
International, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Lei Hong Wai.

The interests stated above represent long positions.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, the Company has not
been notified of any person (other than the Directors of the Company) or
entity had an interest or a short position in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules for securities transactions by the Directors. Having
made specific enquiries with all the Directors, they have confirmed
compliance with the required standard as set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2016.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed the independence
of all the Independent Non-executive Directors and is satisfied of their
independence.

Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex and Mr. Kiu Wai Ming had served the Board of
the Company for more than nine years. They have clearly demonstrated
their willingness to exercise independent judgement and to provide
objective challenges to the management. There is no evidence that
length of tenure is having an adverse impact on their independence. The
Board therefore considers that Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex and Mr. Kiu Wai
Ming remain independent, notwithstanding the length of their tenure.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee, which comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company, has reviewed with the
management in conjunction with the auditor, the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and discussed the internal control,
risk management and financial reporting matters including the review
of audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2016.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under Bye-law 166(1) of the Company’s bye-laws, the directors shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which they or any of them shall or may incur or sustain
by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices,
provided that this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect
of any fraud or dishonesty which may attached to any of them. Such
permitted indemnity provision is currently in force and was in force
throughout the year.

The Company has also taken out and maintained directors’ and officers'
liability insurance policy throughout the year, which indemnifies against
costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities that may be incurred by
the directors in the execution and discharge of their duties.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in
information of the Directors during the year ended 31 March 2016 and
up to the date of this report are set out below:

Name of Director Details of changes

Mr. Lei Hong Wai (1) Appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 26 June 2015;
(2) resigned as the chairman and an
executive director of Huanxi Media
Group Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1003) and
formerly known as 21 Holdings Limited,
on 2 September 2015; and (3) appointed
as the chairman and the members of
the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company
on 31 March 2016.

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton  Appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 26 June 2015.

Mr. Leung Alex Annual salary adjusted to HK$2,550,000
on 1 April 2016 and appointed as an
executive director of Man Sang Jewellery
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1466) on 11
April 2016.

Mr. Chan Cheong Tat Resigned as an independent non-
executive director of Wasion Group
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 3393) on 15
May 2015.
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Report of the Directors
EHFHE

Name of Director Details of changes

Mr. Kiu Wai Ming Resigned as an executive director and the

chief executive officer of Walker Group
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1386) on 26
April 2016.

Mr. Cheng Tai Po Resigned as the chairman, a non-

executive director and the members of
the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company
on 31 March 2016.

Mr. Cheng Sai Resigned as an executive director of the

Company on 31 March 2016.

Save for information disclosed, there is no other information required to
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float during the year and up to the date of this Directors’
Report under the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment in the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 March 2016.

EVENT AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Details of the event after the balance sheet date are provided under
note 40 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
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Report of the Directors

wR A

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE TEER

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are setout in -~ AR AT EE S EH AR ARERAEHFH D
the Corporate Governance Report of the Annual Report. EERRE o

On behalf of the Board REEES

Lei Hong Wai FE

Chairman TR

Hong Kong, 26 May 2016 B 20165 H268

40 Man Sang International Limited / Annual Report 2016



Independent Auditor’s Report
383 7 % B i e oy

i
pwec

To the Shareholders of Man Sang International Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Man Sang
International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries set out
on pages 43 to 146, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet
as at 31 March 2016, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2289 8888 Fax: +852 2810 9888
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Independent Auditor’s Report
385 A% SR R

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
Statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as at
31 March 2016, and of their financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 May 2016
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Consolidated Income Statement

f 7 W 2

Year ended 31 March
BZE3AMBLEE

2016 2015
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
iz FET FET
Continuing operation REREEK
Revenue A 5 190,698 73,368
Cost of sales SHERAR 9 (83,082) (15,699)
Gross profit EH 107,616 57,669
Other income Hbas 7 1,264 871
Other gains — net HAA — 558 8 22,769 13,925
Selling expenses HERMX 9 (4,981) (5,807)
Administrative expenses THRAX 9 (28,652) (36,751)
Increase in fair values of investment BREMERTEREEEDE
properties and investment properties NREEE
under construction 5,938 28,697
Operating profit 2B R 103,954 58,604
Finance income B s 30 4,305 4,166
Finance costs B #5 Ak 2N 30 (2,170) (5,109)
Finance income/(costs) — net BIISA /(B AR) — 558 2,135 (943)
Share of profit/(loss) of an associate FE(E—MEE A BlE A, (B18) 15 ()
Profit before income tax BRETE R AIREF 106,104 57,654
Income tax expense FiS A 11 (38,623) (43,202)
Profit for the year from continuing FEERBHEREER BT
operation 67,481 14,452
Discontinued operation BRIEREER
Profit for the year from discontinued REEREELR LS
operation ES iyl 36 - 1,884
Profit for the year KEERR 67,481 16,336
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Consolidated Income Statement
3l (g T

Year ended 31 March
BZE3AMALEE

2016 2015
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bz THT FTAT
Profit attributable to equity holders of 7/ 7] B B PE1L % F
the company:
— from continuing operation — REFECEER 51,192 9,095
— from discontinued operation — RECRIEREER - 1,884
51,192 10,979
Profit attributable to non-controlling RS RR
interests:
— from continuing operation — RERFELEER 16,289 5,357
— from discontinued operation — RECRIEREER - -
e 6289 53897
Profit for the year KEERF 67,481 16,336
Earnings per share attributable to EARIRRELERET
equity holders of the company
Basic BER 12
— from continuing operation — REFECEER 3.33 HK cents #fl  0.70 HK cents &1l
— from discontinued operation — RECRIEREEE - 0.74 HK cents &1l
3.33 HK cents 1l 0.84 HK cents /&1l
Diluted g 12
— from continuing operation — REFECEER 3.33 HK cents #fl  0.70 HK cents &1l
— from discontinued operation — RECDRIEREEE - 0.74 HK cents &1l

3.33 HK cents #&{ll  0.84 HK cents &l

The notes on pages 52 to 146 are an integral part of these consolidated £ 52 F 146 B 2 fisr ARG S Gk e
financial statements. #o o
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

RAY.N
SR 2 W AR
Year ended 31 March
HZ3A31HLEE
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FHET
Profit for the year REERF 67,481 16,336
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: Hib2mE (E18), W
Items that may be reclassified to profit or l0ss B P T Bm 2 A
Exchange difference on translation of foreign BERIINEB 2 EHERE
operations (42,201) -
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal HEM B A REEE 2 5
of subsidiaries (20,349) -
Item that will not be subsequently reclassified to HETeErHzER2HEA
profit or loss
Increase in fair value of leasehold land and HELHREFAAEILE
buildings, net of deferred income tax BRIEREFTISHFEE - 16,903
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year NEFHMEE (EE) M (62,550) 16,903
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax ANFE 2 EWE LR @ BRIF5E 4,931 33,239
Attributable to: BT REL, -
Equity holders of the Company NG S 278 27,882
Non-controlling interests FEIE At e 4,653 5,357
4,931 33,239
Total comprehensive income attributable to equity ~ AREEARA BB FEE 2 EUWES
holders of the Company for the year arising from:  #8%EE4 B
Continuing operation RBECEER 278 24,881
Discontinued operation BARIEEEER - 3,001
278 27,882

The notes on pages 52 to 146 are an integral part of these consolidated 52 % 146 B 2 st ARG A B Gk 2 e
financial statements. 5 o
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

waBEARE

As at 31 March

®3A31H
2016 2015
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
i FTHER FHET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties REME 14 736,680 939,994
Investment properties under construction fEEEEYE 15 63,360 68,670
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 17 179 523
Prepayments and other receivables FERTFRIE I E PRI AR R 22 2,931 57
Investment in an associate Rl T 28 E 19 - 169
803,150 1,009,413
Current assets REEE
Properties under development BEDYE 16 38,553 155,986
Completed properties held for sale BEHE R TIYE 21 296,745 278,572
Trade and other receivables JRE Wi 35 e L At R Wi BR K 22 226,447 43,309
Financial assets at fair value through BRBREANBIRZMKEE 23
profit or loss - 9,660
Restricted cash ZREIRS 24 703 100,000
Cash and cash equivalents RekERRE 24 462,378 264,265
1,024,826 851,792
Current liabilities PN
Trade and other payables ENER N EMmEN R 25 354,279 455,564
Current income tax liabilities BIERFTRHAE 136,868 116,392
Borrowings B 26 - 137,800
Amount due to an associate JE — R HgE & A B FUR 19 - 4,027
491,147 713,783
Netcurrentassets ~ #@%E#€@ 533679 138,009
Total assets less current liabilities BEERARHERE 1,336,829 1,147,422
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

HeEmafg
As at 31 March
®3A31H
2016 2015
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
{oF:3 THET FHET
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred income tax liabilities BEEFRENAE 20 172,696 230,112
Borrowings BE 26 - 37,800
172,696 267,912
Net assets BEEFE 1,164,133 879,510
EQUITY i
Equity attributable to equity holders Z<7 B)RERE(L &
of the Company
Share capital AR AR 27 158,864 133,161
Reserves & 849,187 594,920
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 1008051 728081
Non-controlling interests FERER 156,082 151,429
Total equity MRS 1,164,133 879,510

The notes on pages 52 to 146 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 43 to 146 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 May
2016.

FEE2E M6 A ZHERNGEMBHRER 2 ERE

55 -

FA3ZE 146 B FTEIR A B RERE R 2016F 5
R26 BEZEEeH & RIF#EE -

Lei Hong Wai Leung Alex
iR BRI

Chairman & Executive Director Executive Director
FERHITEE HiTEF
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mallema®

Year ended 31 March
BE3HA3MHLEEE

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&T FET
Cash flows from operating activities REEBELCHERE
Profit before income tax R PS5 A A 106,104 62,517
Adjustments for: TP SIBED A
Interest income FBEWA (4,305) (4,452)
Interest expenses BRI 2,170 5,655
Depreciation of property, Y - BB REREITE
plant and equipment 388 4,054
Share of (profit)/loss of an associate 1 — B2 A B CE R, EE (15) 7
Share-based payment LARD B EE 2 3R - 66
Increase in fair values of investment KREMENEEREDSE
properties and investment properties NREEE
under construction (5,938) (28,697)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBAEZH/A (19,398) (1,679)
Gain on disposals of investment HEREMERTERE
properties and investment properties mEZ WA
under development - (2,362)
Loss/(gain) on disposals of property, HEME  BENMKREZ
plant and equipment Bi1E, (WA) - 174
Fair value change in financial assets BBBERIRAREYERY
at fair value through profit or loss PBEEARESR (2,007) (6,607)
Dividend income A% B iz - 871
Operating cash flows before EEESBHAIZ
working capital changes REFSRE 76,999 27,805
Change in working capital: BIEEGEE)
Inventories FE - (8,078)
Completed properties held for sale BIEHEZ BT YE 71,377 11,515
Properties under development EERAYE (15,804) (111,179)
Trade and other receivables FEU S 3R E A R YR 5K 994 (53,548)
Prepayments NG S 57 291
Trade and other payables FETE R E A BT AR SR (75,860) 90,258
Amount due to an associate JE A — &G & R R 3R IE (4,027) 1,066
Cash generated from/(used in) REEBEE (ER)ZERL
operations 53,736 (41,870)
Interest paid EfTFLE (3,461) (11,506)
Income taxes paid BRATEE (9,445) (12,772)
Net cash generated from/(used in) RE&EEEL (FH)2BEERE
operating activities 40,830 (66,148)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HAaBemER

Year ended 31 March
BEZE3HA3MHLEEE

2016 2015
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BaE FHET FAT
Cash flows from investing activities KRETHELEZRERE
Purchase of property, plant BEWE - BEMEE
and equipment (448) (3,055)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME - BEMLE
plant and equipment FrS /8 - 2
Proceeds from disposals of investment &8 &Y EFTEHIA
properties - 3,278
Proceeds from financial assets at RSB K B BiBERIZ
fair value through profit or loss, net RNABHNERE 2 G EEFRE 11,667 18,722
Net cash (outflow)/inflow upon HERBATIKZES 36
disposal of subsidiaries GRE),/ mAFREE (57,034) 123,850
Dividend received 2R B - 871
Interest received BUF B 4,305 4,452
Net cash outflow upon the Spin-off SR 2B e R LR E 36 - (57,731)
(Decrease)/Increase in restricted cash SR HERE ORD), 99,297 (100,000)
Net cash generated from/(used in) RETBHELE (F£A) 2
___investing activites ReF® 57,787 | G611
Cash flows from financing activities ®MEEBHELERSRE
Issue of new shares BITHAR 279,692 26,669
Repayments of borrowings EBEEE (173,250) (79,000)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEFEHEL (E£H) 2
_financing activites ReF® 106,442  (52.331)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and E4RZREBE SN CHL)
cash equivalents ZREE 205,059 (128,090)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#W7RE&EERESE
of the year 264,265 392,355
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXR#E8) s g% (6,946) .
cash and cash equivalents at end FRZESRERARS
of the year 24 462,378 264,265
The notes on pages 52 to 146 are an integral part of these consolidated 552 &= 146 B 7 MisT ARG & M iGifkx 2 s

financial statements.

BB e
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RAFRRER
Share Property Retained Non-
Share Share option  revaluation  Translation eamings controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve (note @) Total interests equity
BRE  mEEf £yl EZ21
fE  BiHEE fefe G ERRE (Mista) @it B 2Es
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
TaR TAR TAT TAT TAT TAL TER TEr TEr
Balance at 1 April 2014 R2014F4 1B 268 128,019 311,879 11,898 112,540 84,445 248855 927,636 146,072 1,073,708
Profit for the year NEE R - - - - - 10,979 10,979 5,357 16,336
Other comprehensive income: b2 EYGE -
Increase in fair value of leasenold land and buildings, ~ BEH B RETAR(ERE -
net of deferred income tax RELMEREE = = = 16,903 = = 16,903 = 16,903
Total comprehensive income for the year REERANELE = - - 16903 - 10979 27,882 5357 3239
Share premium reduction (note (b)) B 10318 (Fi3E (b)) = (341,879) - - - 341,879 - - -
Issue of new shares upon exercise of share options TEERERRTER 5,142 21,527 - - - - 26,669 - 26,669
Transfer to share premium upon exercise of TEBRESERARNEE
Share options - 1,748 (11,748) - - - - - -
Share option benefits BRERAN = = 66 - - - 66 - 66
Release of property revaluation reserve upon HELHRETHEREE L
depreciation of leasehold land and buildings MESHEE - - - (1,162) - 1,162 - - -
Transferred to retained earnings upon disposals of HEREHE BT ERERA
completed properties held for sales, net of deferred REBEH - BEEFMERTE
income tax - - - (33,698) - 33,698 - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 3¢) HERBAR (H3E36) - - - (52,794) m Q01549 (254172 - (254,172)
Total ransactions with owners SRBAETZRSHE 5142 (308604 (1168)  (@7.654) o0 @) - s
Balances at 31 March 2015 R201563A31 A8 133,161 3,275 216 4,789 84,616 435,024 728,081 151,429 879,510
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
AR EER

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

AARREER

Share  Property Retained Non-
Share Share option revaluation Translation  earnings controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve (note a) Total interests equity

BRE  MEER REER FER
RE  ROEE 1 1 EXRE (Wia) @i [ 35 ot 353
HK$000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEr TR THx THx T T T T T

Balance at 1 April 2015 201554 B 10 248 133061 33275 26 41789 84616 435024 728081 151429 879,510

Proftfor the year AEERA - - - - SS9 16289 67481

Other comprehensive income: 2 RS :

Release of translation reserve upon disposal of HEMBARNRR 2 EXFE

subsidiaries (Note 36) (i336) - - - - (20,349) - (20,349) - (20,349)

Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations & EHz EH 28 - - - - (30,565) - (30,565) (11,636) (42,201)

Total comprehensive income for the year TEEZANEEE - - - - (50,914) 51,192 278 4,653 4,931

Issuie of new shares (Note {c}) BTHR (M) 25603 253479 - - - - 279,082 - 279,082

IssLie of new shares upon exercise of TRBRERRTHR

share options (Note 28) (B3 2) 100 510 - - - - 610 - 610

Transfer to share premium upon exercise of TEBRERERARDEE

share options - 216 (216) - - - - - -

Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 36) HERBAR (M) - - - (23,760) - 23,760 - - -

Total transactions with owners HRAEAERZRHEE 25703 254,205 (@16 (23760) - 1760 279692 - 9692

Balances at 31 March 2016 R201653A31 B 244 158,364 287,480 - 18029 33702 509976 1008051 156,082 1,164,133

Notes: Bt 3T

(@  The Group's retained earnings included an amount of HK$12,951,000 (2015:  (a) ZAEBEZRZHEMN T BFEPEARKLMBE ([
HK$29,772,000) reserved by the subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of B ) 2 KB R RIR R B E R B IERE
China (“PRC") in accordance with the relevant PRC regulations. The PRC F % 212,951,000/ JT (20154 : 29,772,000
laws and regulations require companies registered in the PRC to provide HBIT) o RBNEAREREREFEFM 2 AR
for certain statutory reserves, which are to be appropriated from the net BEABETEERES - W—SHEIERETH
profit (after offsetting accumulated losses from prior years) as reported in Bz P EA 2 F s M (IR T F 25HE1E%R)
their respective statutory financial statements, before profit distributions to FoREMNTRRCATEE - FTBEERTE
equity holder. All statutory reserves are created for specific purposes. PRC SHEREEN PRABWERSEAF
company is required to appropriate 10% of statutory net profits to statutory BB ERaBEET SR 10% E4
surplus reserves, upon distribution of its post-tax profits of the current EERBROAEE BETRHBLAERRFTE
year. A company may discontinue the contribution when the aggregate EMEARS0BE - AE A AEIEBEEER
sum of the statutory surplus reserve is more than 50% of its registered BAEE - ATEBLABERERARBEEA
capital. The statutory surplus reserves shall only be used to make up BEE BARBIEEEBIEINATER -
losses of the company, to expand the company’s production operations, or S AR UARBEEEEE 2 RARREA
to increase the capital of the company. In addition, a company may make M HEMNM BB AT E—SREMHE -
further contribution to the discretional surplus reserve using its post-tax
profits in accordance with resolutions of the board of directors.

(b) Pursuant to a special resolution passed on the special general meeting  (b) BiE—ENR2014%F7 25 BT 2 REER
held on 25 July 2014, the share premium account of the Company had AKEBBZEHIRER  ARQABRORER
been reduced by the amount of HK$341,879,000, with the credit arising Bl 341,879,000 BT « IRULFTEAEERRED
therefrom transferred to the retained profits of the Company. B EARNRREEF o

() On 25 June 2015, a total of 256,038,041 new shares were allotted and  (¢) R 20156 A25H + & $£256,038,041 1% &7 &
issued to Twin Success International Limited at the subscription price NBERABETI1.098 TR 3 K317 F Twin
of HK$1.09 per share. The net proceeds from the subscription are Success International Limited - FREEEE 2 Fif5
approximately HK$279.0 million. FRIBSFEE X 4 279,000,0008 T °

The notes on pages 52 to 146 are an integral part of these consolidated 252 % 146 B Z Ml s B4R A B G REk 2 BB

financial statements.
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1.

52

GENERAL INFORMATION

Man Sang International Limited (the "Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are currently engaged in the
development, sales and leasing of properties.

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended). The address of its registered office is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"). The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of investment properties and investment properties under
construction which are carried at fair values.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 B S R W
For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZE 201643 A31BILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

)

(i)

New standards, revisions and amendments to
existing standards effective for annual periods
beginning 1 April 2015, relevant to the Group'’s
operations and adopted by the Group:

HKAS 19 (Amendment) Defined Benefit Plans

HKFRSS (Amendment) Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle and

2011-2013 Cycle

The adoption of the above new standards, revisions
and amendments to existing standards did not have
any material impact on the preparation of the Group's
financial statements.

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and
Audit” of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) come into operation during the financial
year, as a result, there are changes to presentation and
disclosures of certain information in the consolidated
financial statements.

2. FESTHBERBE(F)

(a)

mBE X (4E)

(i) M2015F548 18K ZE
EHBRENELAEEEES
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(1B3IA)

BEI% 0106 £2012F
B2 R01MER
(1B3IA) NI3EEH

FEYE

Ry Lt raT &R - $IRA
ERIFTEE S RAERT IR &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 A S R W
For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ 20163 A31 B ILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. TESTHTBREEHE)

(@) Basis of preparation (continued) (@) mMEEXE(E)
(i) BEMELFEN2015F48
1B ZMREEEREY
AREBERMZHITER - B

(iii) New standards, amendments to existing
standards and interpretations which have been
issued but are not effective for the financial year

54

beginning on 1 April 2015 and have not been HAEEAMEBTRRE
early adopted:
Annual improvement Project  Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle! EEMEIAR N12EN14E
A o B FENE
HKAS 1 (Amendment) Disclosure Initiative" BRSHENZ 1Y BEE)
(B3TR)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of EHQERS16% FENEENTES
(Amendment) Depreciation and Amortisation' REBEHES FEREE
‘ ERSACHEY)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer Plants' FROER|Z 165 BE . £BBHEY!
(Amendment) REEG
. ‘ . EALACHES)
HKAS 27 (Amendment) Equity Method in Separate Financial EEGHENE Y BUBKRTER
Statements' (B314) B
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments? BEMEREEN SRIA
B9%
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between ERUBREEN REZRHBLY
(Amendment) an Investor and its associate or F0RREBET ALELEZAN

Joint Venture?
HKFRS 10and HKFRS 12and  Investment Entities: Applying

HKAS 28 (Amendments) the Consolidation Exception' E0RLEENE  SAAEZAMEE
REEAZERR
Fhg Rl
285 (B3TR)
HKFRS 11 (Amendment) Accounting for Acquisition of interests in ERITRRERY  WEASEEESY
Joint Operations’ ENRBITR) g
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts' EROERE R EEETER
F145
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers? FEHERLEN  ZEARMUA?
F15%
d Effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 April L MR2016F4 18 =k 2 &
2016 A2 FZ B AR
2 Effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 April B M2018F4 18 2% 2 1%
2018 FtA 2 FE B A

3 Effective date to be determined

The Group has commenced an assessment of the
impact of these new and amended standards, but is
not yet in a position to state whether they would have
a significant impact on its results of operations and
financial position.

The Group intends to adopt the above standards,

amendments and interpretations when they become
effective.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 B S R W
For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZE 201643 A31BILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Subsidiaries

)

Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any assets or
liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’'s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

2. FESTBERBE(F)

(b) FERF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 A S R W
For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ 20163 A31 B ILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

56

(b) Subsidiaries (continued)

)

Consolidation (continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquire over the fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised and previously held
interest measured is less than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a
bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly
in the consolidated income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted
to conform with the Group’s accounting policies.

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners
of the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of
net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains
or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are
also recorded in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 B S R W
For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZE 201643 A31BILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Subsidiaries (continued)

(i)

(i)

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. It means the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified or permitted by
applicable HKFRSs.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

58

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally accompanying
a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying
amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of
acquisition. The Group's investment in an associate includes
goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the
ownership interest in an associate, any difference between
the cost of the associate and the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities
is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of
the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement, and its
share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount
of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in the
associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates
the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value
and recognises the amount adjacent to “share of (loss)/profit
of an associate” in the consolidated income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are
recognised in the Group's financial statements only to the
extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZE 201643 A31BILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Associates (continued)

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings held by the
Group or under finance lease to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, which include property interest held
under operating lease carried at fair value.

Investment properties are stated at fair value at the balance
sheet date. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement.
An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the consolidated income statement in the year in which
the item is derecognised.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

The fair values of investment properties are based on
valuation by independent valuers who hold recognised
professional qualification and have recent experience in the
location and category of properties being valued. Fair value
is determined based on market value, being the estimated
amount for which a property could be exchanged on the
date of valuation between a willing buyer and a willing seller in
an arm’s length transaction after proper marketing wherein
the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and
without compulsion.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment and its fair
value at the date of reclassification becomes its deemed cost
for accounting purposes. The deemed cost of property, plant
and equipment is used as the basis for the carrying amount
and depreciation of the asset.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

60

(d)

(e)

Investment properties (continued)

Properties that are being constructed or developed for future
use as investment property are classified as investment
properties under construction. Investment properties under
construction are initially stated at cost, including borrowing
costs capitalised, aggregate cost of development, materials
and supplies, wages and other direct expenses, less any
impairment losses. At the balance sheet date when fair
value can be determined reliably, it is stated at fair value
subsequent to initial recognition. Any difference between
the fair value of the property at the date and its previous
carrying amount is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. Where fair value is not reliably determinable,
such investment property under construction is measured at
cost until either its fair value becomes reliably determinable
or construction is completed (whichever is earlier).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Subsequent costs are included
in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the year in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land and buildings transferred from investment
properties are stated at deemed cost equal to its fair value
at the date of change in use and is continued to account
for as if it was an asset held under finance lease. The entire
lease payment of leasehold land and buildings are included
in the cost of land and buildings as a finance lease in
property, plant and equipment and stated at deemed cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZE 201643 A31BILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(f)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses, other than construction in
progress, over their estimated useful lives from the date on
which they are available for use and after taking into account
of their estimated residual values, using the straight-line
method, at the following rates per annum:

Over the shorter of
the term of the
lease or 50 years
Leasehold improvements 25%-33%
Plant and machinery 20%-25%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 25%
Motor vehicles 25%

Leasehold land and buildings

An asset’'s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount. Residual
values and useful lives are reviewed at each balance sheet
date.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within “Other gains — Net” in the consolidated income
statement.

Properties under development

Properties that are being constructed or developed for
future use as held-for-sales are classified as properties
under development and stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Net realisable value is determined by
reference to the sale proceeds of properties sold in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses and the anticipated costs to completion, or by
management estimates based on prevailing marketing
conditions.

Development cost of property comprises construction
costs, amortisation of land use rights and borrowing costs
capitalised, and professional fees incurred during the
development period. On completion, the properties are
transferred to completed properties held for sale.

Properties under development are classified as current
assets when the construction of the relevant properties
commences unless the construction period of the relevant
property development project is expected to complete
beyond normal operating cycle.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

62

(8)

(h)

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties remaining unsold at the end of the
year are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost comprises development costs attributable to the unsold
properties.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to the
sale proceeds of properties sold in the ordinary course
of business, less applicable variable selling expenses, or
by management estimates based on prevailing marketing
conditions.

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments include up-front payments to
acquire leasehold land and payments for lease of properties,
where the leases are held under operating lease. Prepaid
lease payments are stated at cost and are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill or intangible assets not ready to use — are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment l0ss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the
balance sheet date.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZE 201643 A31BILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

Financial assets

)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the financial
assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

e Financial assets at fair value through profit or l0ss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset
is classified in this category if acquired principally
for the purpose of selling in the short term. Assets
in this category are classified as current assets, if
expected to be settled within 12 months, otherwise
they are classified as non- current assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included
in current assets, except for maturities greater than
12 months after the balance sheet date. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group's
loans and receivables comprise trade and other
receivables, restricted cash and cash and cash
equivalents in the consolidated balance sheet.
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()

Financial assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or
loss are initially recognised at fair value and transaction
costs are expensed in the consolidated income
statement. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are subsequently carried at fair values. Loans
and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
the “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”
category are presented in the consolidated income
statement within — “Other gains — net”, in the period
in which they arise. Dividend income from financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statement as part of other
income when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired
and impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 B S R W
For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZE 201643 A31BILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

Financial assets (continued)

(iii) Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

Evidence of impairment may include indications that
the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments, the probability that they
will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation,
and where observable data indicate that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. If a loan and receivable has a
variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the
basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement
in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in
the consolidated income statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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PO
(k)

0

(m)

LICIES (CONTINUED)
Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
properties sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
values and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, in the
consolidated balance sheet.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and
contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation. Provisions
are measured at the directors’ best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the obligation at the balance
sheet date, and are discounted to present value where the
effect is material.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZE 201643 A31BILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(n) Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the consolidated income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

(o) Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity.

(i) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be

paid to the tax authorities.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

68

(o) Current and deferred income tax
(continued)

(i)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised
or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
an associate, except where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZE 201643 A31BILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(p) Revenue recognition

Revenue from sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised when the
risks and rewards related to the properties are transferred
to purchasers, which is when the construction of relevant
properties has been completed, title to the properties has
been delivered to the purchasers and collectability of related
receivables is reasonably assured. Revenue is recognised
only to the extent collectability of such receivable is
reasonably assured.

Revenue from sales of properties with operating
leaseback

To promote sales of certain properties, the Group conducted
a promotional sale of these properties since 2009 wherein it
sold such properties at special rates to selected purchasers.
Sales consideration for these properties included an explicitly
agreed transaction price to be settled in cash plus a lease
back of these properties to the Group free of charge for the
period of 5 years. As lease back of the properties free of
charge was arranged as part of the sale of these properties,
the Group determined the fair value of lease payments it
would ordinarily make to lease such properties from other
independent owners based on factors such as expected
occupancy rates, rental yields etc. and included it as part of
the sales consideration received with a corresponding debit
to other prepaid lease payments. The other prepaid lease
payments will be amortised and recognised as operating
leases expense on a straight line basis over the period of the
lease.

Revenue from leasing of investment properties

Rental income under operating leases is recognised in the
period in which the properties are let out and on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Property management income

Property management income is recognised when the
services are rendered.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

70

(p)

(a)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Others

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
rights to receive payments have been established.

Retirement benefits scheme

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC, the
PRC based employees of the Group participate in various
defined contribution retirement benefit plans organised by
the relevant municipal and provincial governments in the
PRC under which the Group and the PRC based employees
are required to make monthly contributions to these plans
calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries.

The municipal and provincial governments undertake to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing and
future retired PRC based employees payable under the plans
described above. Other than the monthly contributions, the
Group has no further obligation for the payment of retirement
and other post retirement benefits of its employees. The
assets of these plans are held separately from those of the
Group in independently administered funds managed by the
PRC government.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZE 201643 A31BILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(q) Retirement benefits scheme (continued)

()

The Group also participates in a pension scheme under
the rules and regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Ordinance (“MPF Scheme”), which is a defined
contribution retirement scheme for all employees in Hong
Kong. The contributions to the MPF Scheme are based on
minimum statutory contribution requirement of 5% of eligible
employees’ relevant aggregate income subject to a cap of
HK$1,500 per month. The assets of this pension scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in independently
administered funds.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
retirement schemes are expensed as incurred.

Share-based payments

(i)  Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-
based compensation plans, under which the entity
receives services from employees as consideration for
equity instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value
of the employee services received in exchange for
the grant of the options is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted. In
determining the fair value of the options granted:

. market performance conditions are taken into
considerations;

o the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining
as employee of the entity over a specified time
period) is excluded; and

. the impact of any non-vesting conditions is
included.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

72

(r) Share-based payments (continued)

)

(i)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(continued)

Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to vest. The total expense is recognised
over the vesting period, which is the period over
which all of the specified vesting conditions are to
be satisfied. At the balance sheet date, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on non-marketing vesting
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The cash subscribed for the shares issued when the
options are exercised is credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium, net of any
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issue.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited or are not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to retained earnings.

Share-based payment transactions among group
entities

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as an
increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with
a corresponding credit to equity in the parent entity
accounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 B S R W
For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZE 201643 A31BILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

Share-based payments (continued)
(iii) Share options granted to a consultant

Share options issued in exchange for services are
measured at fair value of the services received. The
fair value of the options granted is determined on the
same basis as those for employees and directors of
the Group. The fair value of the services received is
recognised as an expense, unless the services qualify
for recognition as assets.

(s) Borrowing costs

(t)

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of gualifying
assets, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets,
when expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary
to prepare the assets for its intended use or sale are in
progress. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in the consolidated income statement in the
period in which they are incurred.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the executive directors that makes strategic decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 A S R W
For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ 20163 A31 B ILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

74

(u) Foreign currency translation

)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the consolidated financial statements
of each of the Group's entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"), which is the Company's
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised
in the consolidated income statement, except when
deferred in other comprehensive income as qualifying
cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment
hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings, restricted cash and cash and cash
equivalents are presented in the consolidated income
statement within ‘finance income or cost’. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated income statement within ‘other gains —
net'.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZE 201643 A31BILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(u) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(i)

(i)

Transactions and balances (continued)

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as
part of the fair value gain or loss.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-
inflationary economy) that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are translated
into the presentation currency as follows:

(@

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates
of the transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ 20163 A31 B ILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(u) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(i) Group companies (continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign operations, and of borrowings and other
currency instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is partially disposed
of or sold, exchange differences that were recorded
in other comprehensive income are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of the gain or

loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the

closing rate.

(v) Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessor), including
upfront payment made for land use right, are charged to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over

the period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group
has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at
the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value of
the leased property and the present value of the minimum

lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the
finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in finance
lease obligations. The interest element of the finance cost
is charged to the consolidated income statement over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period. The property, plant and equipment acquired under
finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful

life of the asset and the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZE 201643 A31BILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(w) Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. Such financial guarantees are given to banks on
behalf of subsidiaries and other independent third parties to

secure loans and other banking facilities.

2. FESTHBERBE(F)

(w) BBEREL

MBRRAOREARORAEATH
AEEBEBARERIBES TAMK
FEIHANRELBLMARES
MBITABRIELBEZAL - &
EMBRERIRERMEB R F REA
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REEMRITHE -

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the
consolidated financial statements at fair values on the
date the guarantee was given. The fair value of a financial
guarantee at the time of signature is zero because all
guarantees are agreed on arm’s length terms, and the value
of the premium agreed corresponds to the value of the
guarantee obligation. No receivable for the future premiums
is recognised. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s
liabilities under such guarantees are measured at the higher
of the initial amount, less amortisation of fees recognised
in accordance with HKAS 18, and the best estimate of the
amount required to settle the guarantee. These estimates
are determined based on experience of similar transactions
and history of past losses, supplemented by management’s
judgement. The fee income earned is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the life of the guarantee. Any
increase in the liability relating to guarantees is reported in
the consolidated income statement within administrative
EXPENSES.

Where guarantees in relation to loans of subsidiaries are
provided for no compensation, the fair values are accounted
for as contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the
investment in the financial statements of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ 20163 A31 B ILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.

78

(x) Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and which
represents a separate major line of business or geographic
area of operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to
dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented in the income statement, which
comprises the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation and the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on the
disposal, of the assets or disposal group constituting the
discontinued operation.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1. Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest
rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group's overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial
performance. The Group does not use derivative financial
instruments to hedge its risk exposures.

(@) Market risk
() Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain investments in foreign
operations, whose net assets are exposed to
foreign currency translation risk. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency
policy to hedge its currency exposure arising
from the net assets of the Group’s foreign
operations. Otherwise, the Group had no material
exposure to foreign exchange risk as majority
of the Group’s assets were denominated in its
functional currency of either Hong Kong Dollars
or Renminbi.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZE 201643 A31BILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1. Financial risk factors (continued)

(@

(b)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk mainly arises
from bank borrowings and other loan. As at 31
March 2016, the Group does not have any bank
borrowings and other loan.

The Group’s bank deposits were at fixed rates
and expose the Group to fair value interest risk.
As all the Group's bank deposits were short-term
in nature, any change in the interest rate from
time to time is not considered to have significant
impact to the Group's performance.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price
risk from investments in listed equity securities
measured at fair value through profit or loss. As
at 31 March 2016, the Group does not have any
investments in listed equity securities and is not
exposed to price risk.

The Group's bank deposits were at fixed rates
and expose the Group to fair value interest risk.
As all the Group’s bank deposits were short-term
in nature any change in the interest rate from
time to time is not considered to have significant
impact to the Group's performance.

Credit risk

Credit risk mainly arises from trade and other
receivables, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, restricted cash and cash and cash equivalents.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ 20163 A31 B ILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1. Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) cCredit risk (continued)

In respect of cash and cash equivalents, the Group will
place its cash in banks and financial institutions with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies.

For the continuing operation, The Group does not have
any significant exposure to any individual debtors or
counterparties.

Most of the Group’s customers do not have
independent rating. Before accepting any new
customer, where available at reasonable cost,
the Group obtains credit report from commercial
information provider to assess the potential customer’s
credit and defines credit limits by customer. Credit
limits of customers are reviewed periodically. In order
to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has established credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts.

(c) Liquidity risk

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of borrowings
and ensures compliance with loan covenants, if any
borrowing has been drawn.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group's
bank borrowings, based on undiscounted cash flows
(include interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
balance sheet date) and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ= 20163 A31 B ILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1. Financial risk factors (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group’s financial liabilities have contractual
maturities as follows:

Maturity analysis — Undiscounted cash outflows:

B REREE (&)

3.1. MBREREE ()
() RBEZER(E)

rEBEPBRBEZAHIHS
Ban

FMB DI — RRRER

i 8

31 March 2016
20163 831H

On demand
and less than Between
1 year 1 and 2 years Total
RERRR—FR —EZEWE @ct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TER THET
Trade and other payables R EDR M EMEMERER 197,475 - 197,475
31 March 2015
2015%3 A 318
On demand
and less than Between

1year 1and 2 years Total
BEXRR—FA —FEMF st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEL FAL FHET
Trade and other payables ENETREBEMRR 210,039 - 210,039

Borrowings and interest BERMERK
payments 142,682 38,488 181,170
Amount due to an associate  FER —FREEE S A RIZUE 4,027 - 4,027
356,748 38,488 395,236
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3.

82

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.2. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group reviews the capital structure periodically. As a
part of this review, the Group considers costs of capital,
its bank covenant obligations and the risks associated
with issued share capital and may adjust its overall capital
structure through the drawn down of bank borrowings,
the repayment of existing borrowings or the adjustment of
dividend to shareholders.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings (including ‘current and non-
current borrowings’ as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet) less cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash.
Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet plus net debt.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group’s strategy,
which was unchanged from prior year, was to maintain the
debt equity ratio to be in a net cash position. The net cash
amounts as at 31 March 2016 and 2015 were as follows:

3.

B EREE (&)

3.2. EXERERE

AEEERNER 7 B AERAE
BARIFELE  AERHRR KL
REMTNHESRKAN G - LHERFR
EERNEBIARMEE AR

AEETE I ER SR - FRm
A—ED  AEREEREAKA
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fEE  EERAEENARKRZ
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BRAEARE  MHEBRIEER
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BISETE

HZE2016E3 A3 HILFE - K&
B KIS A F AR - BERER
L RIS F RN - KR 2016
FR2015F3A3NB 2 H & F5E
T

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FET

Total borrowings (Note 26) BB (M5E26) - (175,600)
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 24) 37 : RS RZRIRS (fir24) 462,378 264,265
Less: restricted cash (Note 24) B ZBRBIIRE (eE24) 703 100,000
Net cash IR FRE 463,081 188,665

The increase in the net cash position during the year ended
31 March 2016 resulted from the proceeds received from
issuance of new shares of the Company.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. BEKREE(E)
(CONTINUED)
3.3. Fair value estimation 3.3. A AEME
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair TREGHERM S TR E
value, by valuation method. The different levels have been RZ&BMIT A - TRERZEERR
defined as follows: N
e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for e HREEXBEEERMS
identical assets or liabilities (level 1). ZBECRERAR)(F1E) -
e Inputs other than quoted prices included within level e BRBEENRFB1EBZFREN B
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either EBEzUBERAERE (AE
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived %) sk E (AR B E) B A
from prices) (level 2). IR (FE28) °
e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on . ﬂﬁ%‘ﬂ@?ﬂ%ﬁ%@ﬁ%?ﬂ%ﬁﬁ
observable market data (that is unobservable inputs) BT EEXAGERASE
(level 3). (BN TATE R A SUE) (3
) -
See Note 14 and 15 for disclosures of the investment BARBERECREMERTEER
properties and investment properties under construction, BYMERBEEBLEM T 14K
respectively, that are measured at fair value. 15 ¢
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£1 FoE E3E e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
As at 31 March 2015 R201563H318 FHT THT FTET TET
Financial assets at fair value  BEBIEREAAE
through profit or loss Rz HEE
Trading securities BEEE 9,660 - - 9,660

There were no transfers between any levels during the year.

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
equity securities that are traded in an active market. Closing
stock prices are readily available from active market and are
used as being representative of fair value. As at 31 March
2015, the Group has these financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of HK$9,660,000, which was classified
as level 1 for the purpose of measuring fair value. These
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss were
disposed off during the year.

FA - BEBREAEEBE -

BREREAARBINRZUKEE
TNERMHBR 52 BRAFES - Ik
FE g E R PG R ATISEE I AR
FitHE R E R2015F3 A31
B EirEAnER  AEBEBZ
LRBABREANEYRZTHE
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4.

84

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 2, the Directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key areas of judgement that may have a significant impact in
determining the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities.

Fair value of investment properties and
investment properties under construction

Investment properties and investment properties under
construction are stated at fair value in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policies. The fair value of investment
properties and investment properties under construction are
determined by independent professional valuers, DTZ Debenham
Tie Leung Limited, and the fair values of leasehold land and
buildings, investment properties and investment properties under
construction are set out in notes 14 and 15 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively. Such valuations were based on
certain assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and might
materially differ from actual results.

In making the judgement, reasonable consideration has been given
to the underlying assumptions based on market conditions existing
at the balance sheet date. These estimates are regularly compared
to actual market data and actual transactions in the market for
similar type of properties in nearby locations.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. EESTHESTRHE (E)

JUDGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Impairment of receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for impairment
of receivables on a regular basis. This estimate is based on the
credit history of its customers and prevailing market conditions.
Management reassesses the provision for impairment of
receivables at the balance sheet date.

Recoverability of completed properties held for
sale and properties under development

Management performs a regular review on the carrying amounts
of completed properties held for sale and properties under
development. Based on management’s review, write-down
of completed properties held for sale and properties under
development will be made when the estimated net realisable
value has declined below the carrying amount. In determining
the net realisable value of completed properties held for sale and
properties under development, management refers to the latest
economic measures introduced by the local government, recent
global and local economic developments, recent sales transactions
of the Group and other similar properties in the surrounding areas,
marketability of the Group’s existing properties, market survey
reports available from independent property valuers, internally
available information and management'’s expectation on future
sales.

FE W BR SRR (E
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4.

86

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Promotional sales of certain properties

As discussed in note 2(p), the Group conducted a promotional
sale of certain properties since 2009. Sales consideration for these
properties included an explicitly agreed transaction price to be
settled in cash plus a lease back of these properties to the Group
free of charge. Of the explicitly agreed transaction price the Group
received a down-payment of 24% in cash upon transfer of title to
the properties with the remainder being receivable in future. As all
the revenue recognition criteria had been met the Group recorded
this as a revenue transaction.

Having considered a number of factors such as the overall state of
the property market, the prospects of the properties and profile of
individual buyers, management determined that the collectability
of the receivable was not reasonably assured at the date of sale.
Accordingly, revenue was recorded only to the extent of cash
received.

PRC land appreciation tax

The Group is subject to land appreciation taxes in the PRC.
However, the implementation and settlement of these taxes
varies among various tax jurisdictions in cities of the PRC, and the
Group has not finalised its PRC land appreciation taxes calculation
and payments of certain real estate properties with the local
tax authorities in the PRC. Accordingly, significant judgement
is required in determining the amount of the land appreciation
and its related taxes. The Group recognised these PRC land
appreciation taxes based on relevant rules and regulations. The
final tax outcome could be different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, and these differences will impact the taxation
and tax provisions in the years in which such taxes have been
finalised with local tax authorities.
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5.

REVENUE

Revenue represents (i) the amounts received and receivable from
customers in respect of goods sold less returns and allowances;
(ii) the proceeds from the sale of properties during the year; and
(i) the amounts received and receivable in respect of leasing of
investment properties.

A

WABRNETEFZERENRER
RATIE 2 B W & R YRR ¢ (i) S A 8
EMEZABEHA  Ri)HEREME
Z B e ROR -

2016 2015
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Continuing operation: BFEREEK
Sales of properties ES s 138,320 19,989
Rental income A2 UWA 52,378 53,379
190,698 73,368
Discontinued operation: BRI .
Salesof pearlsand jewellery  Prux#EsEs 0 - 199477
Total revenue A 190,698 232,845

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the executive directors that are used to
make strategic decisions. During the year ended 31 March 2016,
the Group's operating activity is attributable to a single operating
segment focusing on development, investment, sales and leasing
of properties.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group had two reportable
operating segments. Details of the reportable operating segment
are as follows:

(i)  Pearls and jewellery — Purchasing, processing, designing,
production and wholesale distribution of pearls and
jewellery.

(i) Property — Development, sales and leasing of properties.

As discussed in Note 36, subsequent to the Spin-off, the Group no
longer carried on the Pearls and Jewellery Business and the pearls
and jewellery segment was classified as discontinued operation of
the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015.

7 EHER

AEBBRERTEEMEDANARERZ
WEBETHEES I - #E2016F3A
31E¢¢f AEENCEEERBR

— A= &EA?EJ: wE - HEKEE
%%Z EHES o

HZE2015F3A3NBILEFE A5EA
MEARRELENE - JRELENE
FHEWT

iy EIRHKE —HE mnmI-
HEMLESEY fﬂi&fﬁi?‘f

iy Wx*E—BE HELEEDE-
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment information about these businesses is presented below:

For the year ended 31 March 2016:

/\Mﬁﬁ*’l' (II\E.)
BHAZEERBZ DRERIT ¢

HZE2016F3A31HILEE -

Continuing
operation —
Property
&
REEK —
mE
HK$'000
FTEx
Profit and loss items BAREEER
Segment revenue DEBUA 190,698
Inter-segment revenue B Ez A -
Revenue from external customers REMDBEE ZWA 190,698
Segment operating profit DEEE R 97,258
Finance income B U Es 4,135
Finance costs R IDN (1,532)
Share of profit of an associate FE(h— B & N ELR 15
Segment profit before income tax BTSRRI 220 m A 99,876
Income tax expense FIiS#Ax (38,648)
Segment profit for the year REEDEHF] 61,228
As at 31 March 2016 R20165E3A31H
Balance sheet items EEBERER
Total segment assets NEBEE 1,261,984
Total segment assets include: DEEEEM
Additions (including transfer) to ;llz,,@b BEZEMN(BIEFEEA)
non-current assets (BRELEFEREEIN)
(other than deferred
income tax assets) 28,590
Total segment liabilities DEEAaRE 659,717
Other information: HibgH :
Depreciation e 388
Increase in fair values of investment &M E R EEIREME
properties and investment NAEEE
properties under construction 5,938
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. DEEFR (E)

For the year ended 31 March 2015: HZE2015F3A31BLEFE

Discontinued
Continuing operation —
operation — Pearls and
Property jewellery Total
& BRIE
ES LURIKE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET FET
Profit and loss items wHREEER
Segment revenue DEUA 74,364 159,477 233,841
Inter-segment revenue Bz WA (996) - (996)
Revenue from external customers REMDEE ZWA 73,368 159,477 232,845
Segment operating profit Db EE 71,111 5,123 76,234
Finance income pliea 4,005 286 4,291
Finance costs BITE AR (1,608) (546) (2,154)
Share of profit of an associate JE 15 — T &8 1% AL A @ = v
Segment profit before income tax B P15 50 AT 99 )% 7 73,507 4,863 78,364
Income tax expense FTs T (43,780) (2,979) (46,759)
Segment profit for the year NEFE DI A 29,721 1,884 31,605
As at 31 March 2015 ®2015F3 8310
Balance sheet items EESERER
Total segment assets DEBEE 1,815,689 = 1,815,689
Total segment assets include: DEEEERLRE
Investment in an associate R—HEBE AR ZIRE 169 - 169
Additions to non-current assets FERENVEE 2 E N
(other than deferred income (BREEFEHEEIN)
tax assets) 64 - 64
Total segment liabilities DEBEE 876,108 - 876,108
Other information: HibgR
Depreciation e (1,180) (2,874) (4,054)
Amortisation B (8) - 8)
Increase in fair values of REMERERIREME
investment properties and AR EEE
investment properties under
construction 28,697 - 28,697
Loss on disposals of property, HEME BEKREEZ
plant and equipment &R - (174) (174)
Provision for impairment of WS TR E RS
trade receivables (403) (1,711) (2,114)
Reversal of provision for BETF BB
inventory obsolescence - 2,305 2,305
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

6.

90

A reconciliation of the reportable segment’s profit before income
tax to the Group'’s profit before income tax is as follows:

\

7 ERE R ()

A 3 & 2 BR B AT 1S 250 A a ) B2 R SR I R
FRSTRAT® A 2 BBRIAT

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE&xT FET
Total profit before income tax for AISRE D 2B FT S R BT AR R
reportable segments 99,876 78,364
Fair value change in financial assets BREBREALEIERZ
at fair value through profit or loss W EERAREE 2,007 6,607
Dividend income A% B 25 - 871
Share options expenses BN Y - (©6)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEKRB AT Z A 19,398 1,679
Corporate finance costs, net NI I %L (468) (3,340)
Corporate expenses NGRS (14,709) (21,598)
Profit before income tax from REBRIHEEER 2
discontinued operation BRETIS TR R T - (4,863)
Profit before income tax of the Group REEREFHBLEEB 2
from continuing operations PR PRAS A0 AT 7 106,104 57,654

A reconciliation of the reportable segments’ assets to the Group's

total assets is as follows:

AHmENHEERASEREEZ B

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FET

Total for reportable segments Al RE D EP 4B R 1,261,984 1,815,689

Unallocated: RAM -

Corporate assets RAElEE 565,992 35,856
Financial assets at fair value through BBBEFIRAAEYERY

profit or loss WEEE - 9,660

Total assets of the Group REBEBEE 1,827,976 1,861,205
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) TEER(E)
A reconciliation of the reportable segments’ liabilities to the AIRESAHABEAERAEEZ HER
Group's total liabilities is as follows: mT
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FHET
Total for reportable segments Al ¥R ZpAa %A 659,717 876,108
Unallocated: RAOR
Corporate liabilities NEEE 4,126 105,587
Total liabilities of the Group rEBRAR 663,843 981,695

The Company is domiciled in Hong Kong. The Group's revenue
from external customers derived from Hong Kong and places other
than Hong Kong are Nil (2015: HK$30,593,000) and HK$190,698,000
(2015: HK$202,252,000) respectively.

The Group's operating segments operate in the main geographical
areas and of which the revenues are disclosed as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2016

RAFRBMENRES - AEBRBEE
BRBEBAINET ZIBEE ZWA
2 Bl A 4 (20154F : 30,593,000 7T) &
190,698,000 7T (20154 : 202,252,000
BIT) °

AEENLEDHERCEIBMERNE
WARKEINT

BZ2016F3831BLLEE

continuing
operation —
Property
B
REEE —
L/ ES
HK$°000
FET

Mainland China FR B i
(excluding Hong Kong) (TBIESS)

190,698

190,698
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6.

92

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The Group's operating segments operate in the main geographical
areas and of which the revenues are disclosed as follows:
(continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2015

6. THER ()

AEENEED I EFZ T ERRE
WABET - (&)

HZE201553A31MBLEE

Discontinued
Continuing operation —
operation — Pearls and
Property jewellery Total
SE Bk
ES PHRKE WBEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT THIT FHIT
Europe BN - 46,166 46,166
Mainland China AR B A i,

(excluding Hong Kong) (TBIEES) 69,484 28,663 98,147
Hong Kong BB 3,884 26,709 30,593
North America JbEM - 39,638 39,638
Other Asian countries E A MBI R - 15,034 15,034
Others EA - 3,267 3,267

73,368 159,477 232,845

The total non-current assets excluding investment in an
associate and deferred income tax assets located in Hong Kong
and places other than Hong Kong is Nil (2015: HK$295,000) and
HK$803,150,000 (2015: HK$1,008,949,000) respectively.

Revenue from the transactions with each single customer
amounted to less than 10% of total revenue of the Group for the
years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015.

OTHER INCOME

URBBREBUIMNF ZERHE
ELETEERN—BHBHEQARZRE
MIEEFTBHEE) D B A% (20154 «
295,000 7T ) K 803,150,0003% 7T (2015
F : 1,008,949,000# 7T °

HE2016FK2015F3A31HIEFE -
HEREREPR S 2 WAL AERELEIW
AL 10% °

7. Httzs

continuing operation FEREER
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET
Property management income MEE B 1,264 -

Dividend income from financial assets BBBEREAREIRZ

at fair value through profit or l0ss IS EEEE ZIREME - 871
1,264 871
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8.

OTHER GAINS — NET

8. HftlgkA — F#

Ccontinuing operation BEREER
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
F@xT FET
Exchange losses b 5 &8 (481) (©678)
Fair value change in financial assets at fair @B RIRA L EIIEZ
value through profit or loss MBEEAREEY 2,007 6,607
Gain on disposals of investment properties, HEREYE 7 WA FEE
net - 2,362
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 3¢)  HEKB A B2 WA (HIFE36) 19,398 1,679
Others Hith 1,845 3,955
22,769 13,925
EXPENSES BY NATURE 9. BEMESEZHX
Continuing operation BEREER
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&T FET
Costs of inventories and completed FERMEERTIMEZEAR
properties for sales 79,957 12,645
Employee benefit expenses (including EERANAS (BEESEHE)
directors’ emoluments) (note 10) (F7E10) 18,955 16,720
Auditor's remuneration B EREN &
— Audit services — B AR 1,270 1,350
— Other non-audit services — EMIERF R 770 3,142
Depreciation of property, plant and VI - BB RREBITE
equipment 388 1,180
Provision for impairment of trade FEUR & TR B B (M E22)
receivables (note 22) - 403
Operating lease rental on rented premises HiHYEZ KEHEH S 114 669
Others HAth 15,261 22,148
Total cost of sales, selling and SHERAK - SHERITHFAX 2%
administrative expenses 116,715 58,257
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10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

94

(a) Employee benefits expenses (including

(b)

Directors’ emoluments)

10. EERABAX

(a) E)ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁi‘i(@%%%@ﬂ

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FA&T

Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEMEARER 17,740 15,395

Pension costs — defined contribution B TRHFGIER

plans and social security costs e RBAAR 1,215 1,259
Employee share options expenses 1B B fE iz i =2 (P 5 28(c))

(note 28(c)) - 66

18,955 16,720

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group for the year include five (2015: five) directors of the
Company whose emoluments are set out in note 38(a)

below.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to the five highest paid individuals,
including directors, as inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office (2015: Nil).
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. FIBHHAX
Continuing operation BEREER
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
F@xT FET
Current income tax: BVERRT1S 8 -
PRC corporate income tax PRI ESR 24,540 10,275
PRC land appreciation tax A 1 (B A 14,488 3,586
39,028 13,861
Over-provision in prior year: B E R
Hong Kong profits tax BEFER (25) (513)
Deferred income tax: RIEFTISHY
Net (credit)/charge for current year ANEE (Q#), AL F8E (380) 29,854
38,623 43,202
Hong Kong profits tax ERBFEH
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5% (2015: BEFEH IR BAFE 2 b5t ERH
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year. SHEFIRFTE16.5% (20155 : 16.5%)5TE °
PRC corporate income tax PERERBH
The PRC corporate income tax in respect of operations in Mainland BRETPEAMERLEPRPERS
China is calculated at a rate of 25% (2015: 25%) on the estimated HERIEBITEN 2RBLABEEDG
assessable profits for the year based on existing legislation, ANEE 2 b 51 P AR B s R IR B 28 25% (2015
interpretations and practices in respect thereof. F 1 25%)5THE °
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

Withholding tax on distributed/undistributed
profits

The PRC tax law imposes a withholding tax at 10%, unless reduced
by a tax treaty, for dividends distributed by PRC subsidiaries to
its immediate holding company outside the PRC for earnings
generated beginning on 1 January 2008.

PRC land appreciation tax

Land appreciation tax in the PRC is levied on properties developed
by the Group for sale, at progressive rates ranging from 30% to
60% on the appreciation of land value, which under the applicable
regulations is calculated based on the proceeds of sales of
properties less deductible expenditures including cost of land use
rights, borrowing costs and all property development expenditures.

The amount of taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to
the profit before income tax as follows:

1. FriEBim > ()

B2k R 2K Az FE B

B2008F1 1AM - BRIFREHE
AT LA A - o BITA AR E o B Y
REHEELERNTMAEFBERINERE
B2 B 20 B S R A 10% TRFN A ©

o B+ b 32 (B

Bz TR E R T AR B B R AE 5
E2WE  BRETHZ FHENRERE
30% E60%HUK - EFHEITATIRIEE
R E WA th & WX P15 5B F0RR A F0R
P (BRI ERERA - BERAR
PIEMEERFAS)E -

R4 2 TR A 32 BB P S B A A A 2
BRA0T

2016 2015
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Profit before income tax FR PS5 A& A 106,104 57,654
Tax calculated at domestic income tax rate &b 1S EE B 2 16.5%
of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) (20154F : 16.5%) 5T H 2 Fi1B 17,507 9,513
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries B QT TR X 2 528 8,482 5,684
Tax effect of: WigE -
Land appreciation tax T g ER (4,362) 5,491
Expenses that are not deductible for IR b3
tax purpose 3,219 2,218
Income not subject to tax AR Z A (4,493) (1,923)
Derecognition of deferred tax assets 1R ERERR S A B MR IE
recognised previously HIBEE - 15,204
Utilisation of tax loss not recognised A SRR R IAEE
previously - (103)
Tax loss for which no deferred income HARERELEMSHEE Y
tax asset was recognised HEEE 1,053 1,849
Over-provision in prior years BAFERBERE (25) (513)
21,381 37,420
Land appreciation tax T I (E R 14,488 3,586
Withholding tax on distributable profits on  ZN£2[E /BB B A & 8] 2R
the Group’s PRC subsidiaries ) 2 FEIE 2,754 2,196
Income tax expense for the year KEEREHAX 38,623 43,202
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic:

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the

12. 8REF
=N

BREARRN RN R AR REEARF
Ea M R ANF R B BT EBRINEFS

Company and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in BEtE o
issue during the year.
2016 2015

From continuing operation: REFELEEK
Profit attributable to equity holders of the AN AR B Al v A

Ccompany (HK$'000) (F&mT) 51,192 9,095
Weighted average number of shares in issue BTG It T2k

(thousands) (Fm) 1,538,469 1,305,123
Basic earnings per share (HK cents per share) BREARZF (BRAW) 3.33 0.70
From discontinued operation: REBRIEREEK
Profit attributable to equity holders of the AN BB R A s A

Company (HK$'000) (F&mT) - 1,834
Weighted average number of shares in issue B EITARD hNAEF

(thousands) (Fh) - 1,305,123
Basic earnings per share (HK cents per share) SFRRERRF (TS - 0.14
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12.

98

EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)
Diluted:

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by the adjusted weighted
average number of shares which represented the weighted
average number of shares in issue during the period and weighted
average number of ordinary shares deemed to have been issued
at no consideration, assuming the exercise of the share options.
The Company has share options as dilutive potential shares for the
year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: Same).

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amount for the
year ended 31 March 2016 is based on the profit for the year
attributable to equity holders of the Company of approximately
HK$51,192,000 (2015: continuing operation: HK$9,095,000,
discontinued operation: HK$1,884,000) and 1,538,675,000 (2015:
1,305,384,000) ordinary shares, which represented the weighted
average number of 1,538,469,000 (2015: 1,305,123,000) ordinary
shares in issue during the year and the weighted average number
of 206,000 (2015: 261,000) ordinary shares deemed to have been
issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise of all the
outstanding share options during the year.

12. 3RER (&)
BE

FREER N IR B RN TS
#EtE - AIRKREAC BT I F
BB INRER R O 1T (R 1 45 AR /=
BRI ERRINETFHE - BZE2016
FIANBUEFEARBAEARENE
FEEEER A 2 FBRE (20154 < #ERA) -

il

HE016F3ANBILFE ElRE
SERMTIRA QAR EEREAFEE R
4951,192,0003% JT(20154F : 5 & & &
7590950008 T DRIEEEE
7 1,884,000 JT ) F 1,538,675,000 B
(20154F : 1,305,384,000 %) E3@METE -
BRERAFEERITLBRMNETFHE
1,538,469,000 A% (2015 £ : 1,305,123,000
BR) RAFE A E AT E BRI AR
ABETEMHEKRAEBEERITZERR
ho#E I 15 2206,000 5% (20154 : 261,000
f&%) o

2016 2015
From continuing operation: REFELEEK
Profit attributable to equity holders of RARREREGEF (FAET)

the Company (HK$'000) 51,192 9,095
Adjusted weighted average number of shares TR 1 DT B (FAR)

(thousands) 1,538,675 1,305,384
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents per share)  S&#E & F (GRS 3.33 0.70
From discontinued operation: RECRKRIEEEIE .

Profit attributable to equity holders of RATREEE SR (FAT)

the Company (HK$'000) - 1,884
Adjusted weighted average number of shares KRR R IR I EL(FAR)

(thousands) - 1,305,384
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents per share) SR #E & F (FREL) - 0.14
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13.

14.

DIVIDEND 13. RE
The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for EEeWIAEHZREE2016F3A31H
the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: Nil). LIEFRIRMNREAIR S (20154F : &) o
On 26 September 2014, a conditional special interim dividend EMOMEQH 2600 EEEIRABKH
was declared by the Board to be satisfied through a distribution BRREIRE  BAAREBEY D IR
in specie by the Company of the entire issued share capital of Eiffk%ji\ﬁﬁﬂ%éﬁ%ZSZEﬁi?zﬁ '
MS Jewellery, subject to the Spin-off Condition (as defined in the WAEFEDIFREH(EER EHxH - B
Listing Document, that is the listing sub-committee of the board of B2 ﬁﬁﬁ Ee FMEZESeHEREHKRS
the Stock Exchange granting the listing of, and permission to deal ORI mRES)EKEB AT
in, the shares of MS Jewellery on the Stock Exchange). The listing EE - Pt EER N2014FE10 816 H
approval was obtained on 16 October 2014, and the entire issued e MEREKEEHEHBITRADTIR
share capital of MS jewellery was distributed to the equity holders BN (E&ERM:E36) DIk FANA B
of the Company pursuant to the Distribution (as defined in note He R2014F108178 REKER
36). The shares of MS Jewellery were listed on the Stock Exchange RRBE R PT £ o
on 17 October 2014.
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REY*
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
At fair value BARE
Beginning of the year REF] 939,994 996,515
Disposals during the year FALE - (916)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHRB AR (191,640) (125,000)
Transfer from properties under ER A ERPYE M)
development (Note) 25,211 -
Transfer from prepaid lease payments ERABEMNEERE - 15,673
Transfer from leasehold land and buildings ## A& + i RIEF - 26,159
Increase in fair values (Note) NRAEIEE () 8,013 27,563
Exchange differences ME X =5 (44,898) -
At end of the year RER 736,680 939,994
Note: M 5E

Increase in fair values included an increase of HK$1,454,000 when certain
properties under development were transferred to investment properties.

ARNEENBRETERTOEERREY

WG AN,2 1,454,000 3 7T ©
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14.

100

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Amounts recognised in profit and loss for
investment properties

14. REWZE (&)
RREVNERNBERBI 2SR

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE&xT FHET

Rental income el A 52,378 53,379
Direct operating expenses from property  FEAE4SBES WA T M2 B

that generated rental income LERR (3,122) (2,904)

49,256 50,475

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had no unprovided contractual
obligations for future repairs and maintenance (2015: Nil).

(@ As at 31 March 2016, no investment property were pledged
as security for other loan. As at 31 March 2015, Investment
properties of HK$345,130,000 were pledged as security for
other loan (note 26).

(b) As at 31 March 2016, certain investment properties
amounting to RMB13,057,000 (equivalent to HK$15,669,000)
(2015: RMB13,057,000, equivalent to HK$16,452,000) were
pledged as security for a loan granted by a PRC bank to an
independent third party (note 33).
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MN2016E3 8318 A&EEHE 5 M
HEEBEREMKERBEZEHNEMR
(20154 : &) -

@)

N2016F3A31H » HMEREME
EREMEREAEKIFR - KR 2015
F3H31H ' AW 345,130,000
BITEREMEREAEER (W
F26) °

M2016E3A3MA BEARK
13,057,0007T + 8 & 715,669,000
(20154 © A K # 13,057,000
7T KB 6,452,000 T ) 2B
FREWEE R —BPRHBTRT
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

14. ®REY* (F)

Fair value measurements at 31 March 2016 using

R2016 F3A31 B2 AR B BRANTEE

Quoted prices

in active Significant
markets other Significant
for identical observable  unobservable
assets inputs inputs
Description B (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
HREEREEE HHEATEER EATTEE
miE2HE BAHE GAYE
(%178) (%2[) (%3[E) @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TER TER
Recurring fair value measurements BRUNAEHE
Investment properties: REME -
— Zhejiang — DD - - 736,680 736,680
- - 736,680 736,680
Fair value measurements at 31 March 2015 using
R201563A31 B2 AR EFERAUTESE
Quoted prices
in active Significant
markets other Significant
for identical observable  unobservable
assets inputs inputs
Description L (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BREELERE EREATER EATIHR
% (R BAHE BAHE
(E18) (B218) (£3E) @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TAT TAT TAT
Recurring fair value measurements BEEAAETE
Investment properties: RENME
— Shenzhen — & - - 170,730 170,730
— Zhejiang — WL - - 769,264 769,264
= S 939,994 939,99

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out
of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change
in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year
(2015: Same).

AEBRBARSBRNEEFHFREH
EREAELEECERRABAAEER
ZBAREH -

FERFI1E F2EBEFIB2ELE
(20154 : MR °
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 14. REYXE(R)

Fair value measurements using significant FRAERTAABEGAEE2ZA

unobservable inputs (level 3) REFTE(E3E)
Shenzhen Zhejiang Total
el i ipan ME
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FH&TT
At 1 April 2014 M2014FE481H8 124,740 871,775 996,515
Disposals during the year FARAHE = (916) (916)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE —TEM B A Al - (125,000) (125,000)
Transfer from prepaid lease payments SR eENEERE 15,673 - 15,673
Transfer from leasehold land EEERHE T RES
and buildings 26,159 - 26,159
Increase in fair values NAEEE 4,158 23,405 27,563
At 31 March 2015 A201563H31H 170,730 769,264 939,994
Total gains for the year included in FFAEEZ
profit or l0ss KEFZIAMRER 4,158 23,405 27,563
Change in unrealised gains for the year st AIBEZ RNEE
included in profit or loss REFIWAEE 4,158 23,405 27,563
Zhejiang
Shenzhen and others Total
AT
=Y REAM At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 April 2015 M2015F481H8 170,730 769,264 939,994
Disposal of subsidiaries HERB AT (178,440) (13,200) (191,640)
Transfer from properties under EREERTYE
development - 25,211 25,211
Exchange differences =58 (8,405) (36,493) (44,898)
Increase in fair values N EEE 16,115 (8,102) 8,013
At 31 March 2016 M2016%F3 A31H - 736,680 736,680
Total gains/(losses) for the year FABRCAFE
included in profit or loss WA (E518) L% 16,115 (8,102) 8,013
Total losses for the year included in FFAHMEENE 2
other comprehensive income REEEBIBATE (8,405) (36,493) (44,898)
Change in unrealised gains for the year st A2 NEfE
included in profit or loss SREAIR U A B 8 16,115 (8,102) 8,013

Man Sang International Limited / Annual Report 2016



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 3 Y 755 e 2 R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZE 201643 A31BILFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 14. REYE (&)

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group's investment properties were valued at transfer dates,
and at 31 March 2016 and 2015 by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung,
an independent and professionally qualified valuer who holds
a recognised relevant professional qualification and has recent
experience in the locations and segments of the investment
properties valued. For all investment properties, their current use
equates the highest and best use.

The Group's finance department reviews the valuations performed
by the independent valuer for financial reporting purposes. This
team reports directly to the chief financial officer (the “CFO") and
the senior management. Discussions of valuation processes and
results are held between the CFO, senior management and the
valuer on a semiannual basis, in line with the Group's interim and
annual reporting dates.

At each half year-end, the finance department:

. Verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation report;

. Assesses property valuations movements when compared
to the prior year valuation report; and

. Holds discussions with the independent valuer.
Valuation Techniques
Valuations are based on:

(i)  Direct comparison approach assuming sale of each of these
properties in its existing state with the benefit of vacant
possession. By making reference to sales transactions as
available in the relevant market, comparable properties in
close proximity have been selected and adjustments have
been made to account for the difference in factors such as
locations and property size; and/or

(i) Income approach taking into account the current rents of
the property interests and the reversionary potentials of the
tenancies, term yield and reversionary yield are then applied
respectively to derive the market value of the property.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the
year.

AEEZEERE

AEBZEEMEREZAHULR
2016 F K2015F3 A3 HEBIEES
BRGEMBERITETHE  ZHE
MBEEERY 2 ABEEER - BYAT
HERE Y E 2 2 % B A B
BopATARAYEMNS ERiZAR
ENERaRERR -

AEBMBEHAT B HRE OFEE L
fMEM 2 fhE - ZEGKERAMEAE
(IHBREDREREEBER - SR
BARKSEZHMEFERSE BH - B
BE EW%EE@%%%E¥¢%@

R 1ETE/IIL%E&$HE§1D °
REYFHEER - e

s BERBUMERSAMBEEHA
Eo8

o  EHEEFZHEREEITHLERE - FF
RMEREEZE - &

o EUBHEETHR -
BT
(BT RIB A T 547 -

() RAERLEE BRRZEVES
BRARARETHE - K2EHEM™
B A ALLBIHER S - BEMD
Mgz Al BB XL E K
MEBRSERZZEZRZFEHAE
%3

(i)  WAREE  sTRMEES 2R
HekBHZEREN  BEIH
LAFES - SR REBRERTE
MFEME -

7 HERTIEESD -
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

104

Information about fair value measurements
using significant unobservable inputs (level 3)

14.

REW= (F)

RABEXRTABRGARE 2L
REFE(E3E) HRER

Range of
unobservable
Fair value at inputs Relationship of
31 March (probability- unobservable
2016  Valuation Unobservable weighted inputs to
Description #i5 (HK$'000)  technique(s) inputs average) fair value
FABE
12016 F HAYE TABE
3A31AR il BAYE
ME TABE (Bi=meE BARE
(TBr) MHERE BWAE Fi9) 2B
Zhejiang R 736,680  Investment approach  — Market rent — RMB39-101 per square  — The higher the market
or direct comparison  — iz £ meter per month rent, the higher the
approach —BAGERR fair value.
REFRERILEE ARERZI0IT —m5HERRAAAE
R
— Market price — RMB2,000-3,900 per — The higher the market
—fE square meter price, the higher the fair
—§IAK value.
ARH2000E3900T —MEARAAAERS -
—Reversionary yield ~ —10.5% —The higher the
—EEkEE reversionary yield, the
lower the fair value.

—ERREZARADAE

ol -
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ= 20163 A31 B ILFE
14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 14. REWEE (E)

Information about fair value measurements HRAEKX 7F aEERAZREZA

using significant unobservable inputs (level 3) RETE(EIEB)HBER (8)

(continued)

Range of
unobservable
Fair value at inputs Relationship of
31 March (probability- unobservable
2015  Valuation Unobservable weighted inputs to
Description # (HK$'000)  technique(s) inputs average) fair value
FABE
®2015% HWAYE TUBE
3A31AR il ] BAE
NME FTABE (= meE BARE
(FHr) MHERE BAE i) 2B
Shenzhen el 170,730 Investment approach ~ — Market rent —RMB2-39persquare ~ — The higher the
RE+ —miEie meter per month market rent, the
—BAREAR higher the fair value
ARE2ZE9TT —TEREARAANE
=N
—Reversionary yield — — 6%-8% — The higher the
—EBYRE reversionary yield,
the lower the
fair value.
—EENEERRAAAE
A -

Zhejiang hins 769,264  Investmentapproach  — Market rent — RMB55-101 per square  — The higher the market
or direct comparison  — M5 E meter per month rent, the higher the
approach —BAERX fair value.

REFFERLBE ARESZI0IT  —TEHERRALE
e
— Market price — RMB2,000-3,900 per — The higher the market
— @ square meter price, the higher the fair
—5IRK value.
ARHE200023900 —MEABHLAERR
—Reversionary yield ~ —10.5% — The higher the
—EBYEE reversionary yield, the
lower the fair value.

—BRUEXARADAE
afe -

REBEBAERAR/ == 55
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15.

106

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES UNDER
CONSTRUCTION

15. EBREWEE

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F&T

At fair value BARE
Beginning of the year REA]) 68,670 67,536
(Decrease)/Increase in fair value ARBECRE),EE (2,075) 1,134
Exchange differences MEH =5 (3,235) -
At end of the year RER 63,360 68,670

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had no unprovided contractual
obligations for future repairs and maintenance (2015: Nil).

The Group's investment properties under construction at 31 March
2016 and 31 March 2015 were revalued by DTZ Debenham Tie
Leung Limited, an independent firm of professional property valuer,
on market value basis. The valuations were arrived at by reference
to comparable market transactions and where appropriate, on the
basis of capitalisation of net income.

The Group's finance department reviews the valuations performed
by the independent valuer for financial reporting purposes. This
team reports directly to the chief financial officer and group senior
management for discussions in relation to the valuation processes
and the reasonableness of the valuation results.

Man Sang International Limited / Annual Report 2016
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZE 201643 A31BILFE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES UNDER
CONSTRUCTION (CONTINUED)

15. ERREW=E (&)

Fair value measurements at 31 March 2016 using
R2016E3A3MBZARBEIERAUTEE

Quoted prices Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable  unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
HEEE HttEX EX
ER TEE FOBE
miaZHE BAYE BARE
#f5 (%18 ($2E) (%38) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FEx TEx TEx
Recurring fair value measurements BEWDNEHE
Investment properties under construction: ERERENE
— Zhejiang — T - - 63,360 63,360
- - 63,360 63,360
Fair value measurements at 31 March 2015 using
RA15E3 AN B2 AR EERANTEE
Quoted prices Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
IBREE EfER DN
TEE CIE 52 Gk 2
M52 R(E BAHE BARE
#t5 (818) (F28) (£3E) ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT TET TEx
Recurring fair value measurements BEURAEHE
Investment properties under construction:  ERKZEWE
— Zhejiang —I - - 68,670 68,670
- - 68,670 68,670

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out
of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change
in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year

(2015: Same).

AEERBANGBRRNEHEFHFRES
BREABEZECEARARAEER
ZEARET -

FRNF1E - F2ERFEI/ AL E
825 (20154 : M) »
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES UNDER 15. EEREWE (&)

CONSTRUCTION (CONTINUED)

Zhejiang-
Commercial/ Zhejiang-
residential land Industrial land Total
WIEE/
FEMRM ITERAM st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T THT
At 1 April 2014 R2014%4 811 47,502 20,034 67,536
Increase in fair values ARERE 882 252 1,134
At 31 March 2015 R2015%3A31H 48,384 20,286 68,670
Total gains for the year included in profit or SHABEERZ
loss for assets KEEHABE 882 252 1,134
Change in unrealised gains for the year HANEEBRRZAFE
included in profit or loss for assets REBWAES 882 252 1,134
Zhejiang-
Commercial/ Zhejiang-
residential land  Industrial land Total
i RNE V4
FER ITERM @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TR THER
At 1 April 2015 R20155481A8 48,384 20,286 68,670
Increase in fair values DAERE (1,587) (488) (2,075)
Exchange difference EREH (2,277) (958) (3,235)
At 31 March 2016 R2016%E3A31H 44,520 18,840 63,360
Total losses for the year included in profit or SHTABRZAEE
loss ERAE (1,587) (488) (2,075)
Total losses for the year included in other FAHMZEREZ
comprehensive income AEEFRAE (2,277) (958) (3,235)
Change in unrealised losses for the year AABHRZAEE
included in profit or loss REBEEE (1,587) (488) (2,075)
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZE 201643 A31BILFE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES UNDER

CONSTRUCTION (CONTINUED)
Valuation processes of the Group

The Group's investment properties under construction were
valued at 31 March 2016 and 2015 by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung,
an independent and professionally qualified valuer who holds
a recognised relevant professional qualification and has recent
experience in the locations and segments of the investment
properties valued. For all investment properties, their current use
equates the highest and best use.

The Group's finance department reviews the valuations performed
by the independent valuer for financial reporting purposes. This
team reports directly to the chief financial officer (the “CFO") and
the senior management. Discussions of valuation processes and
results are held between the CFO, senior management and the
valuer on a semiannual basis, in line with the Group's interim and
annual reporting dates.

At each half year-end, the finance department:

. Verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation report;

. Assesses property valuations movements when compared
to the prior year valuation report; and

. Holds discussions with the independent valuer.

Valuation Techniques

Valuations are based on:

. Direct comparison approach assuming sale of each of these
properties in its existing state with the benefit of vacant
possession. By making reference to sales transactions as
available in the relevant market, comparable properties in
close proximity have been selected and adjustments have
been made to account for the difference in factors such as

locations and property size.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the
year.

15. ERREW=E (&)

REEZEERE

REB 2 HEMRN 20165 201553
ANBABYEXAERMGEMBER
TTEITHE  ZAEMFEERT ZH
MEXER  BHMEERENFE 2
B AEBAOHER RAERED
X¥ME - BRZABaERERRMRE
R o

AEBEPBEEAM R RENEHBT
HEM 2 fE - ZEFERRPEEE
(T BRE) REREEBER - /EC
ABAREZTHRFERERY M
e SREEEEMGEMEYFRE
—R - A ERE RS

REFFEER - e -

s EERBUMGERETAMBEEEREHA
g

o  BEFZHEEREETHRE
EMELRERZD K&

o EBVIHEREITAR

& {E Al

EETHRIRA T T AT

s RABERUEZE BRIRZAFMESR
BRARREHE - K2EHE™
B BLEHER S  BEBAT

w2 Al B LB EL A E KR Y
EEBREARZERELRE -
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15.

110

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES UNDER
CONSTRUCTION (CONTINUED)

Information about fair value measurements

15.

EEREWR (&)

RABERTAEEGABEBE 2L

using significant unobservable inputs (level 3) REFTE(EIE)HBEHR
Range of
unobservable  Relationship
Fair value at inputs of
31 March (probability- unobservable
2016 Valuation Unobservable weighted inputs to
Description Ed (HK$'000) technique(s) inputs average) fair value
FUBE
12016 BAYE FABE
383182 #E PN
DAE FABE (B=mE AARE
(FHr) fHERE BAE T4fE) ZBE
Zhejiang-Commercial/ IEE/REA 44,520 Direct comparison  Market price RMB2,100per  The higher the market
residential land approach mE square meter price, the higher
EE:iAv FEFRARE  thefairvalue.
21007 TEARAALERR -
Zhejiang-Industrial land IWITEE 18,840 Direct comparison  Market price RMB60O per The higher the market
approach mE square meter price, the higher
RN FEAXARE  thefairvalue.
6007C MERRAALERS
Range of
unobservable  Relationship
Fair value at inputs of
31 March (probability- unobservable
2015 Valuation Unobservable weighted inputs to
Description Ed (HK$'000) technique(s) inputs average) fair value
FTUBE
R20156 BAYE FUBE
383182 #E BARE
D FTABE (B= g AARE
(FHr) fHERE HAE T4fE) 2B%
Zhejiang-Commercial/ HIRE /Rt 48,384  Direct comparison  Market price RMB2,100 per The higher the market
residential land approach ik} square meter price, the higher
BRERE FERRARE  thefair value.
21007 MERRAAAERS -
Zhejiang-Industrial land IMITERM 20,286 Direct comparison  Market price RMB600 per The higher the market
approach mE square meter price, the higher
L1 v FEARARE  thefairvalue.
6007T MERRAALERR
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZE 201643 A31BILFE
16. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 16. BEFYE
Properties under development held as current assets represent BERHEEZERRETMYEIZ B EHE
properties which are developed with an intention for future sale. ELEEMMERZME -
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FET
At beginning of the year REH] 155,986 142,752
Additions nE 15,804 111,179
Interest capitalised FEERE 1,291 5,851
Transferred to investment properties ERAREYE (25,211) -
Transferred to completed properties EEAFEHEZ R TIYE
held for sale (101,867) (103,796)
Exchange differences P H =58 (7,450) 5
At end of the year RER 38,553 155,986
The amounts are expected to be completed within the normal RHEEEEERMATR CBERIELE
operating cycle included under current assets. MEBVEEF o
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ 20163 A31 B ILFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

112

17. V¥ - BERRE

Leasehold Furniture,
landand  Leasehold Plantand fixtures and Motor
buildings improvements ~ machinery  equipment vehicles Total
RELHE g i
EF ETRE HEREE RERRE RE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TARL TARL TERL TATL
The Group hiy- ]
Cost or valuation HASEE
At 31 March 2014 R2014538318 117,159 15,939 33,195 9974 8,063 184,330
Additions B = 1,457 608 503 487 3,055
Disposals e = - - (554) - (554)
Transfer o investment properties BRARENE (26,159) - - - - (26,159)
Derecognised Upon the Spin-off PREREHR (91,000 (8,070) (24,720) (5,297) (3,386) (132473)
At 31 March 2015 R201563A318 - 9,32 9,083 1,62 5,164 819
Additions AE = - - 253 195 448
Acquisition of remaining interest in Rt NG
an associate as a subsidiary RiEERNBAR = = = 9 = 9
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - (9,326) (9,083 (3322) (2932) (24,663
Exchange differences EHES - - - (214) (110) (324)
At 31 March 2016 12016538318 - - - 1352 2317 3,669
Accumulated depreciation RiHE
At 31 March 2014 #2014535318 = 15,404 29,683 9,093 6,515 60,695
Depreciation charge NETH 1,605 204 876 509 860 4,054
Eliminated on disposals HERHS - - - (378) - (378)
Eliminated on derecogniionuponthe — AHFEH AR 3
Spin-off = (6,282) (21,476) (4,767) (2,565) (35,090)
Eliminated on revaluation B (1,605) - - - - (1,605)
At 31 March 2015 R201563A318 - 9,32 9,083 1457 4810 27676
Depreciation charge Ex# - - - 108 280 388
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries &M BARER S 9,326) (9,083 (3033 (282 (24,265)
Exchange differences ERES = - - (203) (106) (309)
At 31 March 2016 #2016538318 - - - 1329 2,161 3,490
Net hook value REFE
At 31 March 2016 #2016 53 531A = = = 23 156 179
At 31 March 2015 R201553531R - - - 169 354 53
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18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

18. AN HEERIR

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

F@xT FET

At beginning of the year REA) - 154

Amortisation By - -

Increase in fair value NAEEE - 15,519

Transfer to investment properties AR B Y - (15,673)

At end of the year RER - -

19. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 19. R—EHME QIR ZRE

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

F@xT FET

At beginning of the year REFA) 169 176

Share of profit/(loss) of an associate e —EEE & A RLE T, (&) 15 @)
Acquisition of remaining interest in U B — AT B 2 1 R e ek R i

an associate as a subsidiary EBH B R A (184) =

At end of the year RER - 169

Current liabilities: MENAE :
Amount due to an associate (note i) FEAT — B & A R EIE (i) - 4,027

Note (i): As at 31 March 2015, the amount due to an associate is interest-
free, unsecured and has no fixed repayment terms. The carrying
amount approximates to its fair value and is denominated in

RMB.

Note (ii): On 22 September 2015, the Group entered into an agreement
with an independent third party, Shenzhen First Asia Property
Management Company, to acquire its 80% equity interest in Zhuji
Pan-Asia Property Management Company Limited (“Pan-Asia”) at
a consideration of RMB520,000. The Group effectively holds 100%
equity interest in Pan-Asia after the completion on 23 September
2015 and Pan-Asia became a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group. This represents a step up acquisition of the Group.

HIEEG) : 2015483 A31A « A — B
AAREARE  WEMREET
B - REERAAR EAE
W ANRHHE -

MEEEG) - M2015F9 R 22H » A & H 8 55
YE=ZFFRNE-—TAPEER
BRAFRLE  ARBARSE
520,000 TR ENHBZEMEE
EARARN([ZEE )80% M AL -
M2015F9 A28 EMk & - AEH
BEWRI5H)Z 52 100% AR RS - 238
BMARAEEZ2EMBAR - &
RAREEMNEWE L -
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19.

20.

114

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 19. R—EBE QR ZRE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Unaudited financial information of the associate for the year ended ZHE N RRNEE2015F3A3NBIEF
31 March 2015 was summarised as follows: B2 REEZVBERBMmAT -
2015
HK$'000
FHIT
Assets BE 5,071
Liabilities afE (4,227)
Equity Eam 844
Revenue PN 3,348
Loss for the year AFEEEIE (38)
At 31 March 2015, the Group's investment in an associate is as R2015F3 8318 » AEBR —EHE
follows: RNAEZIERT
Proportion of
ownership
Place of establishment/ interest %
Name of Company operation Class of shares held HEMERES  Principal activities
NGRS BRI S Fris R 25 Al Bl (%) EEER
Zhuji Pan-Asia Property People’s Republic of China  Registered capital 20%  Property management
Management RMB500,000
Company Limited
FEZDMEEEERAG PEARLAME HAMERARE MEER
500,0007¢
DEFERRED INCOME TAX 20. BB
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Deferred tax liabilities: REFTBHARE
— Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered  — R RB 1218 A& U@~
after more than 12 months FEEFRIEAE 172,696 230,112
— Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered ~ — #1218 B AUk El 2 JEIE
within 12 months HEAaE - -
172,696 230,112
Deferred tax liabilities, net BT IE B & F5E 172,696 230,112
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20. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 20. EZEFTBH (&)
REBERBZE2016F3AN B ILFERE
RZETBREMBHRAE(BE) (L&

The followings are the major deferred income tax liabilities/(assets),
without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within
the same tax jurisdiction, recognised by the Group and movements
thereon during the year ended 31 March 2016.

Revaluation  Accelerated  Unrealised Unrecognised
of tax profit in revenue  Withholding
properties  depreciation  inventories (note a) tax Others Total
&S FEE  ARIMA
EfthE i R (Hta) b 0 @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn T T Thn T T Tt
The Group piS-o. |
At 31 March 2014 R201453531H 214099 1) (3282) (14,782) 15,562 97) 210535
Net charge/(credi) to consolidated 18,/ (Gt A) & MER
income statement i 12437 28 378 14782 219% (102) 0977
Net charge to equity IEL TaiEt: A - - g - - 21
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-EHEAT (1,777 - - - - - (1777
Derecognised Upon the Spin-off ~~ AHFER LR (11532) (218 2906 - - - (8.844)
At 31 March 2015 R201563831H 213448 21 = = 17,758 (1,073) 230,112
Net charge/(credit) to consolidated 118/ (;t \) &AM R
income statement FE (3,139 - - - 27% - (380)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAT {46.827) 21 - = = < (46,808)
Bxchange differences ERzE (9,435 - - - (845) 50 (10,230
At 31 March 2016 R2016%3A318 154,051 - - - 19,668 (1023 17269%
Note: S
(@  Unrecognised revenue represents the amounts of the sale (@) ARERBRAIBEBEAREBETREIED K

transactions, with respect to that the Group transferred the title of
certain properties to customers upon receipt of partial payments,
have not received or related receivables are not reasonably
asserted. Corporate income tax has been provided for based on
the full contractual amount of the related sales transactions and in
accordance with relevant rules and regulations even though a part
of the sales considerations has not been recorded as revenue. As
such, a deferred income tax asset has arisen from the provision for
such corporate income tax.

BREE TR EEERREP 2
B2 HE R AR B ARR B AR R
BEAEIETE - REMBRAER - &
B HERBHARDERRA - 1EDS
RREHEER Sz 2HahemBARD
EREH - Bt WELRMEHER
EELBRLEMBREE °
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20.

21.

116

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

At 31 March 2016, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$36,668,000 (2015: HK$32,447,000) available for offsetting
against future profits. No deferred income tax asset has been
recognised with respect to the total of HK$36,668,000 (2015:
HK$32,447,000) due to unpredictability of future profit streams. Tax
losses of HK$36,560,000 (2015: HK$32,390,000) have no expiry date
while the remaining tax losses of HK$108,000 (2015: HK$57,000)
will be expired in five years after the relevant accounting year end
date.

20. EFEFRSH (&)

20163 A 318 » A& E A 36,668,000
7 70 (2015 4F : 32,447,0007% 7T ) ®] A 1
HHEAR G 2 KRB AHIERE - AR
EORERRH OGN KR WA ERE
$£36,668,0007% T (20154 : 32,447,000
BIL)ERELEMSHEE - HEABRE
36,560,000 7T.(20154F : 32,390,000/ 7T)
3 4 fE m B R - R S A 2E &5 98 108,000
7 7L (2015%F : 57,000/ L) KX HEHE &
AHEEAEARDFRER o

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 21. HEHEZRIYE
The Group's interest in completed properties held for sale at their REERFERHEZ BT MEZERIR
net book values are analysed as follows: HEEFESTOT :
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Completed properties held for sale BEHEZRTYE 296,745 278,572

The cost of completed properties held for sale recognised as
expense and included in cost of sales amounted to HK$72,215,000
(2015: HK$11,515,000).
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 2. FEU LS 2k T H 4t U BE 2K

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Trade receivables W E K 384 2,625
Less: provision for impairment of B BN E BURE RS
trade receivables (384) (1,402)
Trade receivables — net RN E R — F58 - 1,223
Deposits, prepayments and e - BIFEREAMEWERR
other receivables (note (i) (B &E () 229,378 42,143
229,378 43,366
Less: Non-current Portion B IEmENE S
Other receivables H IR BR X (2,931) (57)
Current Portion mENE D 226,447 43,309
Note (): The balance mainly consists of a receivable for the consideration () : RBEETZRRELEREKEERAD

7] 2 JE W 4K 18 189,400,000 3 7T ( Bt
FE36(h)) » DREEIETE20165F4 AUES o

for the disposal of Man Sang Jewellery Company Limited
amounting to HK$189,400,000 (Note 36(b)), which have been
subsequently received in April 2016.

FEAEEZ EIWE R R HMEWERR
th 2 JE W & 3 A384,0005% 7T (2015 4F -
2,625,000/ 7C) ° ERFIBEEIER 2

Included in trade and other receivables of the Group are trade
receivables of HK$384,000 (2015: HK$2,625,000) and their ageing
analysis based on due date is as follows:

RO -
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FHET
Not past due 560 HA - 1,223
110 60 days past due BE1 ZE 60K - =
6110 120 days past due BMEIGTE 120K - .
More than 120 days past due BHEF120 KA |+ 384 1,402
384 2,625

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of

default.

KRBT ARRIE 2 YRR F S R Z BT
RIEF - MK AL EE S o
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22.

118

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

The Group has provided fully for all receivables where recovery
of the amounts is remote, unless the Group has determined
that such balances are not recoverable, in which case the
impairment loss is directly written off against the corresponding
trade receivables. Based on past experience and the Group’s
assessment, management believes that no impairment provision
is necessary in respect of the remaining balances as there had not
been a significant change in credit quality of such receivables and
the balances are considered fully recoverable.

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables
are as follows:

22. BB RKHE R AR (&)

ARG 5 P IR O & R O BT A TR U AR
REEBE  BRIEARERSUEFER
ArAgE - ERBERT  BESESE
& SR R R U S R - IRIBB KR
RAEEZ G EREREEARZ
LHRSBELRERE  LTANZERE
WEREEEXYEERE  AZSF
TR R 2

W E SR ERBEESHIT

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FET

At beginning of the year REA]) 1,402 14,762
Provision for impairment losses BB E B S - 403
Amounts written off as uncollectible A E i iE S &R (968) =
Derecognised upon the Spin-off IR TR - (13,763)
Exchange differences MEHZR (50) -
At end of the year RER 384 1,402

The carrying amounts of the trade and other receivables
approximate to their fair values as these financial assets, which
are measured at amortised cost, are expected to be paid within
a short period of time, such that the impact of the time value of
money is not significant.

At each balance sheet date, the recoverability of the Group’s trade
receivables due from individual customers are assessed based
on the credit history of its customers, their financial conditions
and current market conditions. Consequently, specific impairment
provision is recognised.
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22.

23.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. BEWE R KR H A EWIRR (F&)
(CONTINUED)
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other receivables AEBZREKEXNEMEKRERZEE
are denominated in the following currencies: EEN TS, AE A
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Renminbi AR 37,076 37,300
Hong Kong dollar BT 192,302 6,066
229,378 43,366
As of 31 March 2016, trade receivables of HK$384,000 (2015: MR2016F3 A318 © FE U & 384,000
HK$1,402,000) were impaired and provided for. The individually 77T (20154F : 1,402,000 7T) B2 RIE
impaired receivables mainly relate to customers which are in KA o BRI E R E YRR R E ZHifE
unexpectedly difficult economic situations. RIERZINEERRE 2 EFHRH -
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23. BRB@mEAABEIRZHE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

BE

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Trading securities, at market value: BEEE  HHME:
Listed equity investments in Hong Kong BEELTRERE - 9,660

The fair values of the listed equity investments have been
determined directly by reference to published price quotations in
active markets. The listed equity investments were disposed off
during the year.

ETREREZAABETN2RNERT
BEAMIREEERERE - LMBRER
BRFEARNEL -
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24. RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH AND CASH

120

24. TRHEBRSURREREZERR

EQUIVALENTS €
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Bank balances and cash RITHEB MRS 462,254 197,307
Time deposits TE HATE =K 124 66,958
462,378 264,265
Restricted cash (note) ZRRHIZR & (M) 703 100,000
463,081 364,265

Note: As at 31 March 2016, HK$703,000 are restricted deposits held
at bank as security for the mortgage collaboration agreement
(note 33(ii). As at 31 March 2015, HK$100,000,000 are restricted
deposits held at bank as security for bank borrowings (note 26) with
effective saving interest rate of 0.01% per annum.

The carrying amounts of the restricted cash and cash and cash
equivalents approximate to their fair values and are denominated
in the following currencies:

FMisE - 201643 A 31 H - 703,000 7T A =
REIERITIER - (ERIRIBAEREZIE
& (M EE33(00) - 2015438318 -
100,000,000 7t A& S R 18R 1T 7 3K -
ERIBITEE (MiE26) 2 MR I
RERFHETHE00IELE °

XREREN LR NERRE 2 KE
BERANAERERATIEE BB

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHIT

Renminbi AREE 85,047 175,965
United States dollar =TT 612 11,707
Hong Kong dollar BT 377,379 176,506
Others Hity 43 87
463,081 364,265

The period of time deposit is 3 months and it carries interest at
short-term deposits rates of 3.3% (2015: 1 month to 2 months and
carries interest of below 1%).

The conversion of RMB-denominated balances into foreign
currencies and the remittance of such foreign currencies
denominated bank balances and cash out of the PRC are subject
to relevant rules and regulation of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.
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25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. ER SR EMENBRESR

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FAT

Trade payables ERTER 2,468 860
Loans from minority shareholders (note) ®ELVEREZE R (M) 86,938 86,938
Advance receipts from customers AW R FFRIA 84,749 146,150
Other accruals and other payables HipEsr 28R R EmEM KRR 180,124 221,616
354,279 455,564

Note: The loans from minority shareholders are interest-free, unsecured Misr :RELEHBREEH AR S - BIKAR

and have no fixed repayment terms. 4 [E) TE I N o
The ageing analysis of trade payables based on due date is as EREFBEIEIA 2 REASITOT -
follows:

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
0 to 60 days past due BHIOE 60K 1,963 -
61 t0 120 days past due BHI6TE 120K - 257
More than 120 days past due B H 120 KA £ 505 603
2,468 860

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables approximate to ERNEREEMENERERZEEERE
their fair values. The carrying amounts of trade and other payables RAERE - BNEREH M EMRRK
are denominated in the following currencies: ZEREEN TS RSB

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#&T FET

Renminbi AR 263,215 365,423
Hong Kong dollar BT 91,064 90,141
354,279 455,564

REBEBAERAR/ == 55
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26. BORROWINGS 26. & &
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Current BIHA
Bank borrowings (Note (a)) RITEE (M3 @) - 100,000
Other loan (Note (b)) Ha B (D) - 37,800
- 137,800
Non-current JEENEA
Bank borrowings (Note (a)) RITEE (@) - -
Other loan (Note (b)) Ha B (M3 D) - 37,800
- 37,800
Total borrowings BEBE - 175,600
The maturity of the above borrowings is as follows: LEEZFEBHANT
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Within 1 year —FR - 137,800
Between 1 and 2 years —FERFA - 37,800
Between 2 and 5 years MFEERFA - -
- 175,600
(@) Bank borrowings (a) RITEE

As at 31 March 2015, the Group’s bank borrowing of
HK$100,000,000 was secured by restricted deposits held at
bank with carrying amount of HK$100,000,000 (note 24), and
the Company's corporate guarantee.

As at 31 March 2015, the carrying amounts of bank
borrowings approximated to their fair values. The bank
borrowings were carried at HIBOR+2.5% per annum.
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26. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

(b) Other loan

26. 58 (%)

(b)

The Group entered into a fund arrangement with a financial
institution (the “Trustee”). Pursuant to this fund arrangement,
the Trustee raised a trust fund totaling RMB150,000,000
(approximately equivalents to HK$189,000,000) and advance
the whole amount to the Group to finance property
development projects in relation to China Pearl & Jewellery
City. The loan was subject to daily interests at 1.3 times of
the People’s Bank was of China 3 to 5 years interest rate
and which was subject to the review in each stipulated
repayment period. The fund arrangement was recognised as
an other loan and was settled in June 2016.

As at 31 March 2015, the carrying amount of other loan of
HK$75,600,000, denominated in RMB, was subject to an
effective interest rate of 8.8% per annum.

As at 31 March 2015, the other loan was secured by certain
investment properties located in the PRC with an aggregate

carrying amount of HK$345,130,000.

Ht &M

NEE S —ENBEE(EEAD
FrIEeLH - BREBEHESLH -
ST AR BE B ERBERIRE W
ZYHEERRIEEMEEEETED
4 # A R % 150,000,000 7T (FHE 7
#7189,000,00078 7T ) M i B E N IH
S FALE - BERIRTEARR
I3ESFFERZ13BEBRE
FIRBREEE EERERET 1k
EeLZHERBEMEREER
2016%F 6 A#EHE -

MN201553A31H EMERZ
BE {8 475,600,000 7T - UAR
BEEHE  RERF AR 8EAE o

MR2015E3 8318 » H b & 2 IA
7 73 0 B BR T 48 {8 345,130,000 /%5
T2 B TR E YRR -

27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. BRA
Number of shares Share capital
iidvipgE| &S
2016 2015 2016 2015
‘000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F FAx FHET FH&T
Authorised: SEE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 HRREE0.1087T
each ZEBR 5,000,000 5,000,000 500,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRAR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 REVERAEE
each at beginning 0108 T2 Eihk
of the year 1,331,606 1,280,190 133,161 128,019
Issuance of new shares BEITHTRR 256,038 - 25,603 -
Exercise of share options TR 1,000 51,416 100 5,142
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each RERFIEE
at end of the year 0.10% T2 Ll 1,588,644 1,331,606 158,864 133,161
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28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

124

(@) Share options granted to employees and

directors of the group
Share Option Scheme
The 2002 Scheme

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 2
August 2002 (the “2002 Scheme”) was expired on 1 August
2012. Thereafter, no further options would be granted
under the 2002 Scheme but the subsisting options granted
thereunder prior to the expiry date will continue to be valid
and exercisable in accordance with the terms of the 2002
Scheme.

The purpose of the 2002 Scheme is to provide incentives
to the eligible participants to contribute to the Group and
to enable the Group to recruit high-caliber employees and
attract resources that are valuable to the Group. Under the
2002 Scheme, the board of directors of the Company may
grant options to any person being an employee, officer,
agent, or consultant of the Group including executive or non-
executive directors of the Company and its subsidiaries,
to subscribe for shares in the Company at a price to be
determined by the board of directors being the highest of
(a) the closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange
on the date of grant of the option, which must be a trading
day; (b) the average closing price of the shares of the Stock
Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of grant of the option; and (c) the nominal value of
the shares.

The total number of shares in respect of which the 2002
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Group
is not permitted to exceed 10% of the number of shares
in issue at the date of adoption of the 2002 Scheme or
such number of shares as a result from a sub-division or
consolidation of the number of shares at that date. Subject
to as provided in the 2002 Scheme, the Company may seek
approval from its shareholders in general meeting to refresh
this 10% limit, but the total number of shares which may be
issued under the 2002 Scheme must not exceed 30% of the
number of shares in issue from time to time.
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FEIEBERDERE  B5TET
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BEBM - MJIRIBE2002F 58 2

ERFRITIE

00258l EEREERTAE
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ZEIR - RIR2002F 58 - NAF]
Exgr e AtEERE  5H
AB REHER(BEEARFR
HIBARIZHITHIERITES)
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DA RBEREFTEETE
RSN TISEZESE : @Kk
DREREREBR(BERRS
B)EM ARG 2 W E : (D)
D EEZBAER G B AT A ER
ZREBR ARG 2 FHRME
K QBN EE °

2002 F & R AK B A EMEE
AERERTEIIB T BT 2 RN BE - T
BSHBIBR2002F 58I FH M A S
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28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (CONTINUED)

(@) Share options granted to employees and

directors of the group (continued)
Share Option Scheme (continued)
The 2002 Scheme (continued)

No participant shall be granted an option which, if accepted
and exercised in full, would result in the participant
becoming entitled to subscribe for such number of shares
as, when aggregated with the total number of shares already
issued and which may be issued upon exercise of all options
granted and to be granted to him, together with all options
granted and to be granted to him under any other share
option schemes of the Company and/or any subsidiaries,
within the 12-month period immediately preceding the
proposed date of grant (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options), would exceed 1% of the number of
shares in issue as at the proposed date of grant.

The 2002 Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing 2 August 2002.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date
of grant upon payment of HK$1 for each grant of options.
Subject to as provided in the 2002 Scheme, options may
be exercised at any time during the option period, which
is to be notified by the board of directors to each grantee,
commencing on the date of grant or such later date as the
board of directors may decide and expiring on such date as
the board of directors may determine, provided that such
period is not to exceed ten years from the date of grant, and
subject to any restrictions that may be imposed by the board
of directors in its discretion.

Details of the principal terms of the 2002 Scheme are set out
in the circular of the Company dated 4 July 2002.

28. UM AEE R (&)
(@ MEEEREERESRUE

e ()
BT 8 ()
2002 51 &) (%)

AR —2EERHERAE - M
BB EERANEETE
EREE2EEGRABIROK
B MERBRBREZZERLA
HiRT 1218 A B A E MR &R &
TR 2 A BEE - A RIRIE
ARR R/ RN E A R Z E[
H A BB RERT 812 MR H T
R zMAEBRE(BRERRITE -
B A R W R TT 2 RE AL ) JE 7T
EMEHTRA FETZRMDA
g ABRRERL ARz ®
TRNEBBE1%  AITEREERE
FBRRE -

2002 F 5121 7 B B H 2002 F 8 A
2B AR F -

Bz B AR B B
8HNER  WEARBIREZE
PRSI 178 TT » 1R 1% 2002 F 51 &l
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28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (CONTINUED)
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28. IR BEEZ AR E)

During the year, 1,000,000 options (2015: 2,000,000 options)
were exercised and no options (2015: no options) were
forfeited or lapsed. For the year ended 31 March 2016, the
closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before
the dates on which share options were exercised was
HK$1.38.
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(@) Share options granted to employees and (@) MAKEEEERESERLE
directors of the group (continued) IR (4])
Share Option Scheme (continued) R RECHE (&)
The 2002 Scheme (continued) 2002 F 512 ()
The following tables disclose details of the Company’s share TREBEEFANEE LIEE 2002
options held by directors and employees under the 2002 FHETHBE AR BRENE
Scheme and movements in such holdings during the year. BEFFIS -
Number of Number of
share options share options
outstanding at outstanding at
Exercise 31 March 31 March
Date of grant Exercisable period price 2015 Exercised 2016
20155 R2016 5
3A318 3A31H
MR WRTE
2BRE WK
BHAH A8 AR #E B 78
(HKS)
(B7)
Directors &
2 March 2012 2012%3A2A8 2 March 2012 to 1 March 2017 012F3A28F
20173818 0.610 1,000,000 (1,000,000) =
Options vested at end of year REREBBRRE 1,000,000 -
Weight average exercise price MEFHEE HK$0.618 7T HK$0.61757T
Weighted average exercise price B3 BEBARIE Y hiE
of options vested Ff{EE HK$0.613 7T HK$0.613 7T
Weighted average remaining METSRI
contractual life BHER 1.92 years 092 years &

R 7R E 1,000,000 B IR R
(20154 : 2,000,00017 BE M #E ) B

I B AR HE ) WA S R AR o AR
Z2016F3ANBUEEFE . B
AR TE R ARAT - AR AR
2B A138ETT -
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28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (CONTINUED)

(@) Share options granted to employees and

directors of the group (continued)
Share Option Scheme (continued)
The 2012 Scheme

On 17 August 2012, the Company adopted the 2012 share
option scheme (the “2012 Scheme”) under which the
directors of the Company may grant options to eligible
persons to subscribe for the Company’s shares subject
to the terms and conditions as stipulated therein. Unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, the 2012 Scheme will
remain valid for a period of 10 years from the adoption date.

The purpose of the 2012 Scheme is to provide incentives
to the eligible participants to contribute to the Group and
to enable the Group to recruit high-caliber employees and
attract resources that are valuable to the Group. Under the
2012 Scheme, the board of directors of the Company may
grant options to any person being an employee, officer,
agent, or consultant of the Group including executive or non-
executive directors of the Company and its subsidiaries,
to subscribe for shares in the Company at a price to be
determined by the board of directors being the highest of
(a) the closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange
on the date of grant of the option, which must be a trading
day, (b) the average closing price of the shares of the Stock
Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of grant of the option; and (c) the nominal value of
the shares.

The total number of shares in respect of which the 2012
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Group
is not permitted to exceed 10% of the number of shares
in issue at the date of adoption of the 2012 Scheme or
such number of shares as a result from a sub-division or
consolidation of the number of shares at that date. Subject
to as provided in the 2012 Scheme, the Company may seek
approval from its shareholders in general meeting to refresh
this 10% limit, but the total number of shares which may be
issued under the 2012 Scheme must not exceed 30% of the
number of shares in issue from time to time.

28. UM AEE R (&)
(@ MEEEREERESRUE

IR HE (48)
BE AR T & (48)
2012 F 52

MN201258 A17H © KA B H 4
20124 B8 A% 4 &t 21 ([20124F &t
2 B ARRBEETRAE
BALTETERE 68/ ALA
R E AT R AR RB AR
AR o BREESHSIERT SN - 20124
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®euE  FRERAKEELE
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He A B FT I 10% PR 58 - {B20124F
FTEIIE T A 31T 2 R B ECT S
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28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (CONTINUED)
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(a)

Share options granted to employees and
directors of the group (continued)

Share Option Scheme (continued)
The 2012 Scheme (continued)

No participant shall be granted an option which, if accepted
and exercised in full, would result in the participant
becoming entitled to subscribe for such number of shares
as, when aggregated with the total number of shares already
issued and which may be issued upon exercise of all options
granted and to be granted to him, together with all options
granted and to be granted to him under any other share
option schemes of the Company and/or any subsidiaries,
within the 12-month period immediately preceding the
proposed date of grant (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options), would exceed 1% of the number of
shares in issue as at the proposed date of grant.

The 2012 Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing 17 August 2012.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date
of grant upon payment of HK$1 for each grant of options.
Subject to as provided in the 2012 Scheme, options may
be exercised at any time during the option period, which
is to be notified by the board of directors to each grantee,
commencing on the date of grant or such later date as the
board of directors may decide and expiring on such date as
the board of directors may determine, provided that such
period is not to exceed ten years from the date of grant, and
subject to any restrictions that may be imposed by the board
of directors in its discretion.

Details of the principal terms of the 2012 Scheme are set out
in the circular of the Company dated 6 July 2012.

During the year, no share options have been granted by the
Company under the 2012 Scheme.

Fair values of share options and
assumptions

During the year ended 31 March 2015, employee share
option expense of HK$66,000 was recognised in the
consolidated income statement in relation to share options
granted by the Company.
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29. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 March 2015, the Group had pledged investment properties
and bank deposits of total amount of HK$445,130,000 to banks
or financial institutions to secure banking facilities and other loan

granted to the Group.

30. FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

29. BEEHRM

30. A URER A

R2015F3A31H  AEEEEIFRE
% KSR 1T 1E 30 A $£445,130,0008 T F
IRITRT BEE  (EAAEBERIRTT
MEREMERZER -

Continuing operation BEREEK
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHAT
Finance income B U s
Interest income on short-term FEHASRI TR SR Bk e
bank deposits 2,708 3,273
Other interest income HF B as 1,597 893
4,305 4,166
Finance costs Ui RN
Interest expenses on borrowings BEMNEMAX (3,461) (10,960)
Amount capitalised on qualifying assets BEREBEZER LS 1,291 5,851
(2,170) (5,109)
Finance income/(costs) — net B es (R AR) — 558 2,135 (943)
31. CAPITAL COMMITMENT 31. EAXREIE
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHT
Capital expenditure contracted for but not 2 i 4B RN A IS RER
provided for in the consolidated BEsEARRY
financial statements:
Construction of property By 4,326 25,537

REBEBAERAR/ == 55
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32. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
The Group as lessee

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had outstanding commitments
for the future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

32.

ReHERH
REBEEREEA

R2016E3 A31H » NEBIZHN T 5 H
ffEm <z Al s E 2 AR KK

operating leases which fall due as follows: e R AEENT
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE&xT FHET
Operating leases which expire: LT EE AT RREER
Within one year —F R 64 68

Leases are negotiated for an average term of one to five years and
rentals are fixed during the relevant lease period.

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was HK$52,378,000
(2015: HK$53,379,000).

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had contracts with tenants for the
following future minimum lease payments receivable under non-
cancellable operating leases:

HMOBREFHEHRR—E0F  MRA
BEMACEERERESE -

AEEERHAA

FRREZ Y %EME 2 KA R52,378,000
7T (20154 : 53,379,000 7T) ©

R2016F3A31H > AEBEBLIET
AR B E 2 T PR IR R (R AR
MW :

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

Within one year —FR 24,916 42,864
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ZERF(BEEERMSF) 2,154 11,088
From fifth year onwards FRFER 1,443 214
28,513 54,166
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33. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

(i)

At 31 March 2016, certain investment properties with
carrying amount of RMB13,057,000 (equivalent to
HK$15,669,000) (2015: RMB13,057,000, equivalent to
HK$16,452,000) have been pledged to a PRC bank to secure
a loan granted by the PRC bank to an independent third
party (note 14).

The Group entered into a mortgage collaboration agreement
with a bank in Mainland China under which the Group
agreed to indemnify the bank for any failure by purchasers of
the Group’s properties in CP&J City to repay the borrowings
or interest to the bank for the period before and up to the
bank registering the certificates of real estate ownership as
collateral for the borrowings. As at 31 March 2016, the Group
has maximum exposure on the guarantees of HK$28,600,000
(2015: HK$26,611,000).

The directors are of the view that the fair values of these financial
guarantees are not significant.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other significant
contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2016 (2015: Nil).

33. B ER

()  M20165F3A3NH FEEAR
# 13,057,000 7T (18 & 7 15,669,000
% 7T) (20154 = AR % 13,057,000
7T M E 16,452,000 7T ) 2 B
TREWECEF T —HBER
17 WERBRZHPERTR T -8B
YE=TZER(HE4) -

(i) ANEBEPEAE—BEITHL
ZBEERE Bt WEEE
EREBHKERYEER AR
RITECEEREREBEERE M
AL EYEEEEELNE -
AEBRBE@BPITEHRE - B
20163 A31H » AEBHZARE
% %8 /528,600,000 7T (20154 :
26,611,000 7T) °

EERA HERBERZ ARBELT
EPN

B EXPTHEEIN  REBR2016F3

A3MBEEMEKRSAREFE(20154F ¢
) o
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 4. BEALXRS
(@) Key management compensation (a) EEEEAS ZE
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Salaries, wages and other benefits He - TENREMETR 7,584 8,243
Pension costs — defined contribution — HE4 — THEMHATEIR
plans and social security costs IR 127 138
Share options expenses BB AR - 66
7,711 8,447
(b) The Group entered into the following (b) "EBR—BERBREHE
material related party transactions, which TUTEABEEALRS -
were carried out in the ordinary course of
the Group’s business.
2016 2015
Related party relationship  Nature of transaction Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BEALRE XZHE Lz FET FHET
Entities which are under control Reimbursement of rental
by a substantial shareholder charges paid on behalf
of the Company WERZ e ' - 1,549
RARE —REZEREEH,Z Rental income from leasing of
=} investment properties
HIREMEZ WA i 1,331 1,181
Payment of rental charges and
administrative fee
YREERERE iii (773) (405)
Notes: MEsr
() The Group received full reimbursement of rental charges paid ) AEECETERESERZBR
on behalf for a related party without mark-up. TEREWREBEIR —BEEA TN
ZHE -
(i) The Group received rental income from a related party at (i) AEEEWEURE —ABEAL
fixed sums as agreed by both parties. WL T E 2 EFRBERHA ©
(i) The Group paid rental charges to a related party at fixed (i) AEEER—BEEALXIE
terms as agreed by both parties. The administrative fee paid T EEREEE ENERE
is mutually agreed between both parties. T & 75 AR E ©
Save as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements, @%5/\\\%?‘/5\%%%%5%&@%%9" g
there were no other significant related party transactions. BHMEABMEALRS -
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35.

36.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
("MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of an independent trustee.
The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the MPF
Scheme, which contribution is matched by employees. The
monthly contributions of each of the employer and the employee
are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 and thereafter contributions are
voluntary.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefits scheme being
operated by the local PRC government. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute 10% to 15% of the average basic salary
to the retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefits
scheme is to make the specified contributions.

The total cost charged to the consolidated income statement
of HK$1,215,000 (2015: HK$1,259,000) represents contributions
payable to these schemes by the Group in respect of the current
accounting period.

DERECOGNITION OF SUBSIDIARIES UPON
SPIN-OFF AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a) Derecognition of subsidiaries upon spin-off:

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group distributed
the Group’s Pearls and Jewellery Business to its equity
holders. Pursuant to a resolution of the Board on 26
September 2014, it proposed that the Group would spin
off its Pearls and Jewellery Business through the separate
listing of MS Jewellery on the Stock Exchange by way of
introduction, through a special dividend distribution satisfied
by distribution in specie of the entire issued share capital
of MS Jewellery to the Company'’s shareholders (“Spin-off”),
the details of which are set out in the listing document of MS
Jewellery dated 30 September 2014 (the “Listing Document”).
The directors of the Company considered that the Spin-off is
in substance distributing the Pearls and Jewellery Business
to the Company's shareholders.

35.

36.

iR 1R AT 8
AEBAFREEELARIERS MRS

MABEEFE((RESE]) - BES
AR ZEEMBUERAMENESR
B YEAKEZEENRATHE - A%
ERaES BN 2 HRERB R
PR AN 2 5% » B iR B T (& HER
fEEMETZRBEEHKERAEA
1,500/ 7T ERBIL S E BB RET -

AEETEMNEARZRBESATEE
WH TSz BRERRARBENE 2
A8 o BB A BZAENE 8
N FHERF S 2 10% = 15% 1 /18 F
B - WRHENEFEmE - AEEZ
BRI EERN -

FHRABRERFPFIBRZERE B
1,215,000 7T (20154 : 1,259,000
T0) + BASRERAS T EIRE AR Llst
BIEH 25K -

DR ILEITNE QTR
EHEQT

(@) DIFRFALERIAMELF :

HE2015F3A3MHIEFEE - K
EEBETRRKREEED K T
B RBEEER2014F9826H
ZREBR  ERAEEUNBEN
FEBEARRBREEYHIRR ALK
EEHEBITRAZERE DK
BRAEKRENBZATEY B - #
MAREBHRHKEES (9] -

HEHAREKRE A A2014F9
A308 z s Emsct]) -
KRAREERE  DIKRER LZH
PUHHKRBEBE DR TFARBIMRE -
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36. DERECOGNITION OF SUBSIDIARIES UPON 36. PHFRALEANBEATDRH

134

On 26 September 2014, a conditional special interim
dividend was declared by the Board, to be satisfied through
a distribution in specie by the Company of the entire issued
share capital of MS Jewellery, subject to the Spin- off
Condition (as defined in the Listing Document, that is the
listing subcommittee of the board of the Stock Exchange
granting the listing of, and permission to deal in, the shares
of MS Jewellery on the Stock Exchange) (the “Distribution”).

On 16 October 2014, the Stock Exchange granted the listing
of, and permission to deal in, the shares of MS Jewellery
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, upon which the
Spin-off became unconditional and the 100% shares of
MS Jewellery were distributed to the equity owners of the
Company pursuant to the Distribution. On 17 October 2014,
the Spin-off was completed and the shares of MS Jewellery
were listed on the Stock Exchange.

As a result, the Pearls and Jewellery Business was presented

as a discontinued operation in these consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2015.
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SPIN-OFF AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES EWB AT (&)

(CONTINUED)

(@) Derecognition of subsidiaries upon spin-off: (@) PHFEBRILBEIANB QT
(continued) (&)
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36. DERECOGNITION OF SUBSIDIARIES UPON
SPIN-OFF AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

(a) Derecognition of subsidiaries upon spin-off:

(continued)

The profit for the period from 1 April 2014 to 17 October 2014
from the discontinued operation is analysed as follows:

R20UFA4A1E 220145F10A178
HARE - RE BRI E TS O mF D

T

For the

period from

1 April 2014 to

17 October

2014

20145

4818

2014

10H17H

B

HK$'000

FAET

Revenue WA 159,477
Cost of sales HEK AR (99,700)
Gross profit EF 59,777
Other gains — net HAa A — F 58 263
Selling expenses HERY (5,562)
Administrative expenses THAX (49,355)
Operating proft . =@&as® 5123
Finance income B sl e 286
Finance cost B TSR AR (546)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, (260)
Profit before income tax BRET1SHE AT T 4,363
Income tax expense FrisiiF sz (2,979)
Profit for the period BRI 1,884
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36. DERECOGNITION OF SUBSIDIARIES UPON 36. DIFIHFARILBEANB AR R H
SPIN-OFF AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES ENB AT (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Derecognition of subsidiaries upon spin-off: (@) 2IFBARLEEIANBAF :

(continued) (&)

The net assets of the MSJ Group as at 17 October 2014 were

REKEEER2014F 10817 H

as follows: ZEEFEWNT

HK$'000

FH&T

Property, plant and equipment ME - BB KRR 97,383
Deferred income tax assets BEEFTSTEE 2,906
Inventories FE 86,360
Trade and other receivables JE U B R L Ath PR U AR X 113,558
Cash and cash equivalents ReERFRRE 57,731
Trade and other payables FEAT & 3% E At FE AT AR X (42,007)
Current income tax liabilities BVHAFR SR B E (3,615)
Borrowings BE (46,400)
Deferred tax liabilities BREFRIEEE (11,750)
Net assets derecognised upon the Spin-off DIFRR IR 2 EEFE 254,172
Special dividend (Note 13) FERIAR B (HI5E13) 254,172
Net cash outflow upon Spin-off BRI S P A RN DE 2
Cash and bank balances Re MIRTTEE R 57,731

The cash flows for the period from 1 April 2014 to 17 October
2014 from the discontinued operation is analysed as follows:

R20UFAATE Z2014F108178
B - RECDKRIEKEER RS

MEDHTIT

Period from
1 April 2014 to
17 October
2014
20145
4R18%
2014 F
10H 17 H
A
HK$'000
FAT

Operating cash flows
Investing cash flows
Financing cash flows

RERSRE
RERESRE
MEHRSRE

(107,275)
(2,389)
(1,200)

Total cash flows LIRS RE

(110,864)
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36. DERECOGNITION OF SUBSIDIARIES UPON 36. PIFRFARILERMB AT RH
SPIN-OFF AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES ENBAT (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Disposal of subsidiaries: (b) HEKBAT :

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group entered
into an agreement with Hua Yang Global Limited, a company

HZE206F3A31TBLEEE K&
% [E 81 Hua Yang Global Limited (A<

wholly owned by Mr. Cheng Chung Hing, the major
shareholder of the Group, to dispose of its entire equity
interests in Man Sang Jewellery Company Limited and
its subsidiaries, wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group,
for a total consideration of HK$189,400,000, consisting
of HK$65,000,000 for the sales of shares of the disposed
subsidiary and HK$124,400,000 for the sales of loan
receivable from the disposed entities, which was determined
with reference to their financial position as at 31 March 2016.
The disposal was completed on 31 March 2016.

EEFERNEHNELEE2EH
BzRa)FI A MHEER
REKEERAR KHN BRG]
(REBZ2EMBAR) 223
¥ 48K (B 5189,400,000 TT -
BREEEHENBARRNDZ
650000008 T RHEELEER
2 FE U E 3 2 124,400,000 7T
Ty 22 EPH2016F3A31H 2
HRREBEE - HEER2016
F3A31HRK °

31 March 2016

2016 &
3A31H
HK$'000
FET
Cash consideration BeERE 189,400
Less: Direct transaction costs in relation B BEFERBEZEREZSKA
to the disposal (951)
Net consideration REFHE 188,449
Analysis of assets and liabilities over KREREECEEREEIIN:
which control was lost:
Investment properties WA 191,640
Property, plant and equipment VI - BB RERE 398
Other receivables H AR X 525
Cash and cash equivalents RekZERRS 56,083
Other payables H fth FE AT BR X (9,386)
Income tax liabilities FrssiaE (3,054)
Deferred tax liabilities BEFRIEEE (46,806)
Net assets disposed of FTHEEESFHE 189,400
Add: Reclassification of exchange reserve o BEHRBRARBENSEZELFKE
__upon disposal of subsidigries . 20349
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZWA 19,398
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36. DERECOGNITION OF SUBSIDIARIES UPON 36. IR ILEAMBLARIRH
SPIN-OFF AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES ERB AT (&)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries: (continued) (b) HEME AT : (&)
Analysis of net cash outflow from disposals of subsidiaries: HEMBATZHESRE ERES
o
31 March 2016
2016 5
3A31H
HK$'000
FHxT
Cash consideration WerRE 189,400
Less: considerations receivable from B+ FEU Hua Yang Global Limited Z X (B
Hua Yang Global Limited (189,400)
Cash consideration received during FREWEESNRE
the year -
Less: W
— cash and cash equivalents included in — AFEERBRARZER S EERE S
subsidiaries disposed of (56,083)
— direct transaction costs in relation to — HEFBERBLEEIZKAE
the disposal (951)
Net cash outflow from disposal of HEMBARZREREFE
subsidiaries, net of cash disposed of HRFFEERS (57,034)
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36. DERECOGNITION OF SUBSIDIARIES UPON 36. DIRIGARILEAMB AT R H
SPIN-OFF AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES ENBAT (F)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Disposal of subsidiaries: (continued) (b) HEKBEQT : (&)

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group entered
into an agreement with an independent third party to dispose
of its entire equity interests in Swift Millions Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, for a total consideration
of HK$123,850,000 which was determined with reference to
its financial position as at 16 March 2015. The disposal was

completed on 16 March 2015.

HE2015F3A31HILFE - K&
BBy FE = s A
HEXRRZENBRAREERFR
NaElEE AR - #{8123,850,000
B2 E K R2015F3 16
Bz BHKREETE HEER

20153 A 16 B °

16 March 2015

2015 &
3A16H
HK$'000
FAT
Cash consideration received BURIRERE 123,850
Analysis of assets and liabilities KRERGECEEREEDI T
over which control was lost:
Investment properties B 125,000
Trade and other receivables, FEUWE R B FEUR AR X
prepayments and deposits BRFKIBERET® 257
Trade and other payables FE A & 3% B At FE A BR X (1,187)
Current income tax liabilities BVERFTS I A E (122)
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEFTSREE (1,777)
Netassetsdisposedof ~ pime&EE¥E 122171
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHBARZWA 1,679
Net cash inflow arising from HE—RBMBARMELE
disposal of a subsidiary BHERANFHE
Cash and cash equivalents BUWIRE RERIRE
received 123,850

REBEBERA
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37. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT

OF THE COMPANY

Balance Sheet of the Company

37. AR FREERBERRFEEH

ARREEREBER

As at 31 March

all

M3A31H
2016 2015
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIEE 207,931 211,018
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUBT B A B3k IE 162,403 281,513
370,334 492,531
Current assets REEE
Other receivables Hith fEULBR 3K - 572
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG 255 23,293
Cash and cash equivalents BekERRE 376,579 4116
376,834 27,981
Current liabilities RBEE
Other payables H A pETERER 2,624 1,354
Amounts due to subsidiaries AR ENGIE /S 52,958 =
55,582 1,354
Netcurrentassets ~~ #@®&E¥E 0000000 321,252 26,627
Total assets less current liabilites @¥ERA®EE 00 691,586 °19,158
Net assets BEFE 691,586 519,158
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to equity AR RRESLER
holders of the Company
Share capital A& X 158,864 133,161
Reserves & (@ 532,722 385,997
Total equity RS 691,586 519,158

KARBEABBREN2016F5A26H
EEESHESHAUTESERREZ -

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of
Directors on 26 May 2016 and was signed on its behalf.

Lei Hong Wai Leung Alex
=41 R I

Chairman & Executive Director Executive Director
FTEFRNTEE HITEE
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37. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 37. A AT EEEXREEST

OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) (#8)
Note (a) Reserve movement of the Company Miif @) ANATEEEES
Share Share option Retained
premium reserve earnings Total
B3R E BRERE RE &R F st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FHET
At 31 March 2014 R2014%3831H 341,879 11,898 21,836 375,613
Share premium reduction BIRLRR 15 (8 (B &)
(note) (341,879) = 341,879 -
Issue of new shares upon TTIE B AR R B 1T IR
exercise of share options 21,527 - - 21,527
Transfer of share premium upon 7743 B AR i i 88 3% A
exercise of share options [0 =8 11,748 (11,748) - -
Share option benefits BERRRERR A - 66 - 66
Loss for the year KEEERE - - (11,209) (11,209)
At 31 March 2015 M2015%3831H 33,275 216 352,506 385,997
Issue of new shares BITHAR 253,479 - - 253,479
Issue of new shares upon TERBAERF 1 THAY
exercise of share options 510 - - 510
Transfer of share premium upon 77 B8 AR S B 8 A
exercise of share options Wtn (B 216 (216) - -
Loss for the year REFEE = = (107,264) (107,264)
At 31 March 2016 20164538318 287,480 - 245,242 532,722
Note: Pursuant to a special resolution passed on the special general MeE : RIF—ER 201457 A25 ARIT 2%

REMNREGEEZEHIRER AR
AR E (B BR AR 341,879,000 7T
BUMESERBFCERERARAR

B o

meeting held on 25 July 2014, the share premium account of the
Company had been reduced by the amount of HK$341,879,000,
with the credit arising therefrom transferred to the retained profits
of the Company.
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38. BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS 38. EEFE K fER
(a) Director's emoluments (a) EEM<E
The remuneration of every director is set out below: REEZ ST ¢
For the year ended 31 March 2016: HZE2016F3A31ALFE :
Aggregate emoluments paid to or receivable by directors REBEF(TwmADa s KB
in respect of their services as directors, whether of the NAEB) ZREOTFESNE
company or its subsidiary undertaking ESy ok Ve
Other
emoluments paid
or receivable
in respect of
director’s other
Remunerations services in
Employer's paidor  connect with
Estimated contribution receivable  the management
money value toa inrespect  of the affairs of
of other retirement of accepting  the company or
Discretionary Housing benefits benefit officeas its subsidiary
Name of director Fees Salary bonuses allowance (Note j) scheme director  under takings Total
HERER
LONGES
ENEAAER
- EEHER BhET  CETEMEE
i EHEE RHEN BHDRT EffRERe
f£3:21 He Fe BisA REY (H3Ej) #3 Pl 2 5 Hode &3t
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TEn TEn T TEn TEn Tn TEn TEn TEn
M. Lei Hong Wai (note a) FigRE4 (Hia) 917 - - - - - - - 917
Mr. Cheng Tai Po (note b) BRGE (HD) - 1,000 - - - 18 - - 1,018
Ms.ChengKaMan, Carman— BEUME - 800 - - - 18 - - 818
M. Cheng Sai (note ¢ Bt (Hikc) - 1,200 - - - 3 - - 1273
i Cheung Kwok Wai, FEEEE (Hitd)

Efton (note d) 917 - - - - - - - 917
M. Leung Alex REELH - 2,200 550 - - 18 - - 2,768
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat REERE 20 - - - - - - - 20
Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex Urers 20 - - - - - - - 20
Mr. Kiu Wai Ming e dihi 220 - - - - - - - 20

2,094 5,200 550 - - 127 - - 831
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38. BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS 38. EEFE= N ER (B)
(CONTINUED)
(@) Director's emoluments (continued) (@) E=M< (&)
The remuneration of every director is set out below: BEFZHMEIFIAT ¢
For the year ended 31 March 2015: HE2015F3A3MBLEFE -
Aggregate emoluments paid to or receivable by directors MEBER(THmARAINEKB
in respect of their services as directors, whether of the NEIER) Z2RBENTEEHE
company or its subsidiary undertaking (continued) SR BE ()
Certain of the comparative information of directors’ WEHEHE2015FE38318 IEE
emoluments for the year ended 31 March 2015 previously ErEEME RIERTAFHEHIT
disclosed in accordance with the predecessor Companies WE)ZETFHHER  LBFH
Ordinance have been restated in order to comply with the BATHEB(F60RE) 7B EHE N
new scope and requirements by the Hong Kong Companies Esk o
Ordinance (Cap.622).
Other
emoluments paid
orreceivable
n respect of
director's other
Remunerations Services in
Employer's paid or connect with
Estimated contribution receivable  the management
money value toa inrespect  ofthe affairs of
of other Tetirement ofaccepting ~ the company or
Discretionary Housing benefits Denefit office 8 its Subsidiary
Name of director Fees Salary bonuses allowance (Note ) scheme (irector Under takings Total
HEEER
NS
EMBRRER
EftlEe EEHEHR ENES  ZESEMERE
[EaTEEE BAlEEm BRENE BREEL
EE)Y e ¢ BERL fERE (M) {3 flwai Lt &t
HKS 000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS 000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000
T T T Tér T T T Tér T
Mr.Cheng Chung Hing (note e) ~ BBIAE% 4 (Hfste) - 1609 - - 841 9 - - 2479
Mr. Cheng Tai Po (note b) BRE®E (D) = 1,000 = = = 18 - = 108
Ms. Yan SauMan, Amy (note )~ BAZME(H3H) - 77 - - - 9 - - 986
Ms. ChengKa Man, Carman B30 - 63 6 - - 17 - - m
Mr. Cheng Sai (note ¢) B4 (ikc) = 1104 = = S 67 = = 11
M. Leung Alex (note g) 224 (Witg) - 185 167 - - 18 - - 2010
M. Fung Yat Sang (note h) BRERE (M) "9 - - - - - - - 19
Mr.Chan Cheong Tat (note )~ B2 564 (B 1) 38 - - - - - - = I
M. La Chi Wah, Alex e b = = e = J - g b
M. Kiu Wai Ming BlELE 20 - - - - - - - 20
407 7168 Bl = 841 13 g = 8988
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38.

144

BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Director's emoluments (continued)

Aggregate emoluments paid to or receivable by directors
in respect of their services as directors, whether of the
company or its subsidiary undertaking

Notes:

(@  Mr. Lei Hong Wai was appointed as an executive director on
26 June 2015 and the Chairman on 31 March 2016.

(b)  Mr. Cheng Tai Po has been appointed as the Chairman and
re-designated as a non-executive director on 16 October 2014
and resigned as a non-executive director and Chairman on 31
March 2016.

(c) Mr. Cheng Sai was appointed as an executive director of
the Company on 16 October 2014. The amounts for 2015
represented his emoluments for the year ended 31 March
2015 of which HK$576,000 was his emoluments for acting as
an executive director of the Company. Mr. Cheng Sai resigned
as an executive director on 31 March 2016.

(d  Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton was appointed as an executive
director on 26 June 2015.

(e)  Mr. Cheng Chung Hing resigned as a non-executive director
on 16 October 2014.

) Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy resigned as an executive director on
16 October 2014.

(8  Mr. Leung Alex was appointed as an executive director of
the Company on 16 October 2014. The amounts represented
his emoluments for the year ended 31 March 2015 of which
HK$1,094,000 was his emoluments for acting as an executive
director of the Company.

(h)  Mr. Fung Yat Sang resigned as an independent non-executive
director on 16 October 2014.

(i) Mr. Chan Cheong Tat was appointed as independent
non-executive director on 14 January 2015.

0 Other benefits are non-cash benefits: consist of approximate

retable value and rent of the properties for accommodation
and other related expenses.
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38. EENEKkER (&)

(@) E=M< (&)

REREE(THEILAREWEAR
EB)ZRBECHTFTEERESTENRZ
A

PaE

(@) FHEEKLENR2015F6H268%
ZEABHITEERNR2016F3 A
JINEHEZTEERE -

(b) BRI EER2014F10816 B
BEREATRIATIERNTES
KA 20164 3 A 31 BBHEIERTT
BERERE -

(€ ESSEAR20145E10 A 16 B &
ZREERNRRNITES - 20154F
SHEARREBE201543H318
IEFEBE - M & 576,000
TAEETARBAITEST ZMH
% o W SE AR 201643 A31H
BHIHITES -

) REREENR201556 F26 A%
ZERITESE

(€) EPRESEAEN201410A16H
BHIFFMTESE -

h  EAEZNEN2014F10716H
BHITES -

@ REHELER2014F10A168
BZEAEERARARRITES - Zd
ERREBZE2015F3A318 1
FEME - mMEF 1,094,000 70
BEEARARRITEEZME -

BRAELLEN2014F10716H
BHIBMIFTESE -

(i) PREZEREN2015F1 148 %
LEABILIENTES -

() H@EMNAREReEN  BREE
EWE 2B RREMEERE
SAREMBEER -
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38. BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Directors’ retirement benefits and
termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement
benefits or termination benefits during the financial year
(2015 = Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company does
not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2015 : Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

As at 31 March 2016, there are no loans, quasi-loans and
other dealing arrangements entered into by the Company or
subsidiary undertaking of the Company in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and controlled entities with
such directors (2015 : Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements,
no significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group's business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

38. EENE KR (BA)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

EEZRKRENREREEER

MBEEABEE S KR A EE

EfT R AR 1 S BERRAR A1 (20154
&)

RERREZRBMEE=
FREZKE

REE2016FE3A31BILFE - &
DA E R E E AR M AT
AIE=AZFRE(2015F « &) -

BRUEE - EFE2E
AEREARBASI )2

MN2016F3A31H » A RQ T8 A
NREE 7B A R EET L AE
T EEZREHEEREEE RS
ﬁxm/\zgm EETQ\&/H;HE
SLH (20156 - &) o

ZEﬁ#E“

BRERA M HMERMIMEEIN - F4
RRAFEAR  ARRLERIE
MERAREZEBMARBZE
FERIMEREETHEAEA RS
RLEERG  RHHAL -
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES  39. S EfBATIER
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 March R2016F3 A31B 2 EEKBARFIR
2016: mTr
Percentage
of equity
attributable
Place of Nominal value to the Group
establishment/ of issued (note a)
principal place of share capital/ TEE
operations registered capital EihES
Name of subsidiary Rz 2R B2 Principal activities
MEAREHE TELEHME BAFMEREE (Mza) EEXEK
Market Leader Technology British Virgin Islands/ ~ Ordinary 100%  Investment holding and
Limited Hong Kong US$100 trading of equity securities
KBRZES/ LimR100%T BRERREBRAZSRZ S
e
China Pearls and Jewellery PRC Registered capital 65.85%  Property development and
International City Co. Ltd. H US$30,000,000 investment
(note b) AR MEBRRERRE
HFEERBRAKEUER A A 30,000,000 7T
(FitzED)
Notes: Mtﬁjf c

40.

146

a. The Company directly holds the interests in Market Leader
Technology Limited. All other interests shown above are indirectly
held by the Company.

b. Registered in the PRC as a wholly-owned foreign enterprises.

EVENT AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

On 8 April 2016, the Company, Xinli Holdings Limited (the “Vendor”)
and Ms. Wang Ming, the sole ultimate beneficial owner and
director of the Vendor, entered into agreements, pursuant to which
the Company has conditionally agreed to acquire and the Vendor
has conditionally agreed to sell 100% equity interest in Gloryear
Investments Limited (the “Target”) and all amounts due from the
Target to the Vendor for a total consideration of HK$1,468,000,000.
The consideration will be satisfied by a combination of cash
amounting to HK$300,000,000 and the issuance of promissory note
with a face value of HK$1,168,000,000, 8% interest per annum and
maturity date of 3 years. The Company has the option but not the
obligation to redeem the promissory note at any time prior to the
maturity date by giving the Vendor written notice. As at the date of
this report, the transaction has yet to be completed.
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40.

a. AN B E A Market Leader Technology
Limited 2 125 » il A E b RS T
AAREEEE -

b, REEEMZIEEELE -
SR E S

MR2016F4 488 + "7 & HIER
ERAR(EFBEIEZE(BHZH
—BRREEHEBANESR)ILHE B
I ARRBEREREZWENE S B K
HRELEEFHRESRAR(EBEEA
A 100% RAEE R EIRARIERE R
ZFRERIE - BR{E A1,468,000,000%8
7T ° B # LAZR 4 300,000,000 8 Tt 44 4
%% 17 1H {8 1,168,000,00078 7T~ & B 8E
MEBHABIF 2 AR BB AR -
AARAEEZE(BXIEME)REIHEZ
AERME SR EEBANER AR
B NARERE  XFHEKRTMK °
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Five-Year Financial Summary

RESULTS
E
For the year ended 31 March
HZ3A831HLEE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET FHET FET FHET
(Note a) (Note a) (Note b) (Note b) (Note b)
(KizEa) (FifzEa) (B3 D) (FizED) (Pff3Eb)
Revenue A 190,698 73,368 82,907 461,185 370,236
Profit before income tax BR P15 AT A 106,104 57,654 103,076 112,077 122,209
Income tax expense IS Tib (38,623) (43,202) (48,976) (47,810) 42,112)
Profit for the year from AEEREFELE
continuing operations iyl 67,481 14,452 54,100 64,267 80,097
Profit for the year from REFKEBLKILE
discontinued operations TS 2w A - 1,884 31,496 = =
Profit for the year AR F R A 67,481 16,336 85,596 64,267 80,097
Profit attributable to: SRR
Equity holders of the Company RARIME 51,192 10,979 68,463 48,244 54,845
Non-controlling interests FEE A 16,289 5,357 17,133 16,023 25,252
67,481 16,336 85,596 64,267 80,097
Dividend per share TR E
Interim dividend HHIRR B 1THKcents  3HKcents
- - - 1781 37
Special interim dividend 5 RI R AR B, 15 HK cents
- - - 1571 -
Proposed final dividend R R R B 2HKcents 2 HKcents
- - - 274 27
Proposed special dividend B RIR 2 20 HK cents
- = S B 20741l

18 HK cents 25 HK cents
- - - 18784 25 711l
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TUAE A B T 2

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

EEREE
At 31 March
R3A31H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET FHET FHET FHET
(Note a) (Note a) (Note b) (Note b) (Note b)
(Mizxa) (FizEa) (BFzED) (BtzED) (FiFzED)
Total assets BEE 1,827,976 1,861,205 2,116,469 2,001,689 2,373,081
Total liabilities BafE (663,843) (981,695)  (1,042,761) (998,847) (953,811)
Non-controlling interests i (156,082) (151,429) (146,072) (139,748) (148,694)
Equity attributable to equity ARRREEEER
holders of the Company 1,008,051 728,081 927,636 863,094 1,270,576
Notes: BEE -

(@  The financial figures were extracted from the consolidated financial (@)  #BEF @B FEMBRE -
statements.

(o)  The financial figures were extracted from the 2014 annual report. No  (b)  BISEF IHHEERE 2014 FF I, - R 20125F K&
separate disclosures of continuing operation and discontinued operation 2013%F - WABIHBEFBLERBFRER
were made on the financial figures for 2012 and 2013. IHEE TS 2 BTIE T -
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Principal Properties
FEYE

Below is a schedule of investment properties held by the Group in Hong

R2016F3A31H » KREBMREELFEH

Kong and the PRC as at 31 March 2016: ZIEMERTRAOT -
Location Description and Tenure (note) Use Group's Interest
i 24 BER R F 5 (M) R KEE GRS
Group |
B—8
Part of Market Centre of Phase |, CP&J The properties have a total gross floor area Commercial booths and 65.85%
City in Shanxiahu Town, Zhuji, Zhejiang of approximately 48,960.6 square metres. shops for lease
Province, the PRC
The properties are held under medium lease.
BT A T ZEYEEREEREL 48,9606 FHK - EERNLEREE 65.85%
W T EER B IRE
E—HHHI R 5T ZEMEAFERLOEE -
Part of factory buildings of Phase |, The property has a total gross floor area Factories for lease 65.85%
CP&J City in Shanxiahu Town, of approximately 21,240.4 square
Zhuji, Zhejiang Province, the PRC metres.
The properties are held under medium
lease
HENTE ZEYFBEEEE IHHEE 65.85%
FEMILTHE #)21,240 4 F 7K -
E—HHHTE ZEMEAFERLOEE -
Part of composite building of Phase I, The property has a total gross floor area Commercial building 65.85%
CP&J City in Shanxiahu Town, of approximately 21,235.4 square for lease
Zhuji, Zhejiang Province, the PRC metres.
The properties are held under long lease.
HENTE ZEYFBEEEE EEERE 65.85%
FEMILTHE #)21,2354F 77K -
F—HAnmeE ZEMENRPBENOZE -
Part of commercial complex of Phase |, The property has a total gross floor area Commercial complex 65.85%
CP&J City in Shanxiahu Town, of approximately 7,321.42 square for lease
Zhuji, Zhejiang Province, the PRC metres.
The properties are held under medium
lease
HENTE ZEYFBEEEE HENMFEEFHE 65.85%
FEMILTHE W732142F 7K -
ZERERKER

SO EABEET

ZEMEAPHBOEE -

REBEBAERAR/ == 55
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FEYE
Location Description and Tenure (note) Use Group's Interest
o B BT R 5 (B ) R KEBATLER
Group Il
|
Industrial Land, Phase I, CP&J City, The properties has a total site area of Land under 65.85%
Shanxiahu Town, Zhuiji, Zhejiang approximately 26,589.3 square development in
Province, the PRC meters. planning stage
The property is held under medium lease.
BT A GEMEBIGHEE BERREERZ 65.85%
FEEWILTHE #)26,589.3F 5K ° BREAIH
EREBRKRER
E—HIX¥MA GEMENFHBEOEE -
Commercial/residential land, Phase I, The properties have a total site area Land under 65.85%
CP&J City, Shanxiahu Town, Zhuiji, of approximately 18,097.2 square development in
Zhejiang Province, the PRC meters. planning stage
The property is held under long lease.
HBIATT A ZEVREBIGHER BERREIRER 65.85%
FEILTHE 418,097 2F 3K » EEA L
ZERRERIREMRE — 1
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Notes: PR -
Long lease represents the lease of over 50 years; medium lease represents the  EHIFAA) 2 FHAFRBS04F : P EIAA 2 HENF10
lease of between 10 years and 50 years. E504F ©
Group | - Investment properties held by the Group in the PRC FHE-AEBETRBEZIREYE

Group Il - Investment properties under construction held by the Group inthe PRC S - f8—AREBAEFRRIFB A 2 EEZ IR EME
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